
 

 

5th September, 2024 
 
To, 
BSE Limited 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400001 
Scrip Code: 532357 - EQ 

To, 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400051 
Symbol: MUKTAARTS - EQ 

 
Kind Attn: Corporate Relations Department 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 

SUB: NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ALONG WITH ANNUAL REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24 

 
In terms of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, enclosed herewith, Notice of 42nd Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company 
scheduled to be held on Friday, 27th September, 2024 at 04:30 p.m. (IST) through Video 
Conferencing/Other Audio-Visual Means, along with Annual Report of the Company for the financial 
year 2023-24, which is being sent through electronic mode to all the Members of the Company who 
have registered their e-mail address with the Company/Depository Participant(s) as on Friday, 30th 
August, 2024.  
 
The Notice of AGM along with Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24, are available on the 
website of the Company at www.muktaarts.com, on the website of Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited 
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com and on 
the website of National Securities Depository Limited at www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 
Kindly take the above information on your records. 
 
Thanking you. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
For Mukta Arts Limited 
 
 
Hemal N. Pankhania 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
 
Encl.: as above 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





Celebrating 100 episodes of Jaanaki

Mukta A2 Cinemas at Ratnanjali, Gujarat 
opened during the year

Mukta A2 Cinemas at Chandkheda, Gujarat 
opened during the year
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PERFORMANCE AT A GLANCE

 Year ended 
 31st March 2024

 Year ended 
 31st March 2023

 Year ended 
 31st March 2022

 Year ended 
 31st March 2021

 Year ended 
 31st March 2020

Revenue from operations  275.16  198.74  483.43  186.31  216.06 

Other Income  160.01  138.47  145.12  111.77  109.78 

TOTAL INCOME  435.17  337.21  628.55  298.08  325.84 

Depreciation and Tax
 197.86  175.87  326.07  169.36  137.40 

Depreciation  23.99  20.57  21.31  20.41  23.16 

Interest  60.53  50.37  58.90  58.46  68.93 

 113.34  104.93  245.86  90.49  45.31 

 103.34  84.21  205.85  69.81  51.73 

Dividend  -  -  -  -  28.23 

Dividend Rate  -  -  -  - 25%

Gross Fixed Assets  782.45  766.86  770.55  767.56  767.55 

Net Fixed Assets  237.81  244.63  263.40  281.28  301.68 

Total Assets  2,707.89  2,675.48  2,508.94  2,512.37  2,193.32 

Equity Share Capital  112.93  112.93  112.93  112.93  112.93 

Reserves and Surplus  1,771.23  1,666.65  1,582.31  1,366.04  1,295.61 

Net Worth  1,884.16  1,779.58  1,695.24  1,478.97  1,408.54 

Earnings per Share (EPS) 
(in `)

EPS Basic  4.58  3.73  9.16  3.12  2.23 

EPS Adjusted to ` 5  4.58  3.73  9.16  3.12  2.23 
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT 2024

The year gone by has been a somewhat muted one for the Global Media and Entertainment 
Industry. Dragged down by the dual shocks of a retracting global economy coupled with a 
protracted Writers and Actors strike in the US, the Industry grew by 5% which has outperformed 
the rest of the economy though. 

Rationalization of linear TV networks, a slowdown in production for OTT and streaming and a 

content in their lives post Covid, have been some of the global issues the M&E Industry has had 

AI has dominated the conversation and there is little doubt, it is poised to make a serious impact 
on the business in the years ahead.

The Indian scenario was somewhat similar but in the theatrical space, underperforming Hollywood biggies and many from 
the domestic market was interspersed with massive hits in Hindi like Pathaan, Gadar 2, Jawan and Animal and from the 

of things to come as the vernacular audience pushes for more and more relatable content in their own dialect. Exciting times 
ahead for all kinds of producers no doubt.

From a Company point of view, Mukta Arts has made some steady progress over 2023. Our television series for Doordarshan, 
‘Jaanaki’ was hugely successful completing its 208 episode run and being one of the highest rated serials on the channel 

the industry but now we are sure that they are ready to head into production. I have spent a great deal of time working on 

(‘MA2’). During the year, we closed 

is rationalization like this that we believe will drive the business ahead. We are almost back to pre-Covid levels in terms 

expand strongly in years to come. We continue to strongly believe in the theatrical space and smart expansion has to be 
the name of the game moving ahead for MA2. The subsidiary in Bahrain though continues to have struggles. The change 

impacted theatres across the country and MA2 has not been spared. We hope though that our upcoming management deals 

Whistling Woods International (‘WWI’) had a steady year in terms of its performance. Despite increased domestic and 
international competition, we have continued to recruit strongly for the upcoming Academic year. The school, further 

this, WWI has had exchange programs with a host of Universities like ECV in France, University of Denver in US, Gotland 

will be in the forefront of this from a media and entertainment education perspective. WWI also signed a strong agreement 
with Ubisoft, which is one of the world’s leading gaming companies to ensure that our students and faculty get the value of 
their great experience and technology. It will make our students even more industry ready on graduation. 
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been movement in terms of hearings and with both the Film City and the Maharashtra Government supportive, we believe 

As I complete my look back at 2023, it leaves me hopeful for what can come in 2024 and later. Decisions the Company takes 
now are important to ensure that it is on strong footing in the years ahead and I believe we have taken those decisions. 
Mukta has a strong set of upcoming productions, MA2 is taking tough calls with an ongoing rationalization and building 
ahead with further investment and WWI is again showing that it can attract attention form some of the most reputed brands 
in India and across the world. There is little doubt that the future ahead is bright and I appreciate that the road thus far has 
been bumping with ups and downs. My gratitude and thanks to all our stakeholders for the belief and faith in us and our 
mission. I believe the best is yet to come and it will be coming soon.

Regards,

Subhash Ghai 
Chairman
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, 2024

Global perspective

In 2023, while economic headwinds impacted overall economic growth, the global revenue of the entertainment and media 
industry rose 5% to US$2.8 trillion in 2023 in spite of technological disruptions, outperforming overall economic growth.

Convergence has taken on a key role with gaming, streaming and social media overlapping into each other. User generated 
videos are now attracting advertising funds.

With changing patterns of consumption of entertainment, streaming services have grown in size and stature at a brisk pace 
driving the need for content. The Writers Guild of America went on strike against the use of AI in script-writing. The use of AI 

both volume and quality of content may be expected to grow with the ethical use of AI in the near future.

Revenue growth in the E&M sector is being driven by growth in connectivity spending, advertising and direct consumer 
spending, in that order. While global spending is expected to grow at a CAGR of 4.6% till 2028, Indonesia, India and China 
are expected to grow at over 7%.

Indian Media and Entertainment Sector

By current estimates, the Indian Media and Entertainment Sector is expected to grow to ` 3 trillion by 2026, led by OTT, 
Gaming, Animation and VFX. India is expected to be the world’s fastest growing OTT video streaming market. The 2023 

JIO Cinema app.

base and wide acceptance of digital payment modes.

Indian Film Industry

Oppenheimer, Fast X and Mission Impossible- Dead Reckoning – Part 1, performed well across the country. While some 
Bollywood hits like Jawan, Animal and Gadar 2 were the top performers for the year, some small-scale productions, like The 

& Beverage sales per head grew, 
advertisement sales continued to 
remain noticeably below the pre-Covid 
levels. Many large exhibitors followed 
the approach of moving to a variable 
rent model as well as exiting from loss 
making cinemas.

With deeper penetration of internet 
access across the country, consumption 
of OTT content also increased rapidly. 
In addition, Regional OTT content 
volumes surpassed Hindi OTT content 
volumes. OTT Streaming services have 
been recording steady growth in their 
subscriber base. Mukta A2 Cinemas at Navsari, Gujarat  

opened during the year
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Company performance

The Mukta group’s performance has 
been following a gentle upward trend 
for the past few year. The Standalone 
revenue of ̀  4,352 lacs posted by Mukta 

year, with a healthy 24% margin of 
` 1,033 lacs. This was 

mainly attributable to television content. 
The Hindi language women-centric 
soap has been running successfully 
on Doordarshan. Apart from this new 
stream of revenue, the steady existing 
stream of revenue from the library 

investment in property, continued.

` ` 5,511 lacs in FY 2023 while EBITDA margin 

expenses on activities that had been postponed due to Covid, resulted in a loss of ` 588 lacs, which was a step in the right 
direction from the previous year’s loss of ` 827 lacs.

closed down 9 screens at 4 loss-making locations while adding 20 screens at 6 new locations. Its total revenue grew to  
` 10,139 lacs, up 21% year on year, while posting a 79% increase in EBITDA to ` 1,330 lacs. Its loss after tax was ` 976 
lacs, down 37% year on year. Revenue per screen now stands at 82% of pre-covid performance.

existing screens while also managing 10 new screens, also in Bahrain. While revenue increased from ` 1,272 lacs to  
` 2,117 lacs, EBITDA continued to remain negative with loss after tax reducing marginally from ` 414 lacs to ` 212 lacs for 

The Consolidated revenue of the Mukta Group crossed the `
format. Consolidated Revenue stood at ` 20,860 lacs, up 20 % from ` 17,426 lacs in FY 2023 and EBITDA at ` 2,818 lacs 
at a margin of 14%. Losses for the year showed substantial reduction from ` 1,881 lacs in FY 2023 to ` 659 lacs for the 

Mukta A2 Cinemas at Kadapa, Andhra Pradesh 
opened during the year
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NOTICE
Notice is hereby given that the 42nd Annual General Meeting of Mukta Arts Limited will be held on Friday, 27th September, 
2024 at 04:30 p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) (“OAVM”) to transact the following 
businesses.

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited (Standalone and Consolidated) Financial Statements of the 
st March, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and 

the Auditors thereon.

Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT the Annual Audited (Standalone and Consolidated) Financial Statements of the Company for the 
st March, 2024 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, be and are 

hereby approved and adopted.”

2. To re-appoint Mr. Subhash Ghai (DIN:00019803) as Chairman, Executive Director of the Company, who retires 

Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

himself for re-appointment be and is hereby re-appointed as Chairman, Executive Director of the Company.”

By Order of the Board of Directors 
Mukta Arts Limited

Sd/- 
Hemal N. Pankhania 

 
ICSI Membership Number: ACS31426

 
Mukta House, Behind Whistling Woods Institute,  
Filmcity Complex, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 065 
CIN: L92110MH1982PLC028180 
Tel. No.: 022-3364 9400 
Email: investorrelations@muktaarts.com

Date:  
Place: Mumbai 
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NOTES:

1) (“MCA”)

dated September 25, 2023 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) and Securities and Exchange Board of 

(hereinafter referred to as “SEBI Circulars”), it has been permitted to hold Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through 
Video Conferencing (“VC (“OAVM”), without the physical presence of the Members at a 
common venue, till 30th September, 2024.

 In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the 42nd AGM of 

th September, 2024 at 04:30 p.m. (IST). The proceedings 
of the AGM is deemed to be conducted at Whistling Woods Institute, Dada Saheb Phalke Chitra Nagari, Goregaon (E), 
Mumbai-400065.

2) Details as required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI Listing Regulations in respect of the Director seeking re-appointment 
at the AGM are provided as Annexure-I to the Notice. 

3) Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to 

has been dispensed with.

4) Accordingly, in terms of the aforesaid circulars, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be 
available for this AGM and hence, the proxy form, attendance slip and route map of AGM are not annexed to this notice.

5) 
24 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the 

 Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report will also be available on the Company’s website at www.
muktaarts.com, websites of Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.
bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com. Physical 
copy of the Notice and Annual Report will be sent to the Members on their request, who have not registered their e-mail 
address with the Company or Depository Participant(s).

6) Institutional Investors, who are Members of the Company, are encouraged to attend and vote at the AGM through 

intending to appoint their authorized representatives pursuant to Sections 112 and 113 of the Act, as the case may be, 

Board Resolution to the scrutinizer by e-mail at kaushaldalalcs@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com 
and investorrelations@muktaarts.com, not later than 48 hours before the scheduled time of the commencement of the 
meeting. 

7) 
quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

8) 
commencement of the meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the notice. The facility of participation at the 

 will be made available to at least 1,000 Members 
MCA circular. This will not include large Members (holding 2% or more shareholding), promoters, institutional investors, 
directors, key managerial personnel, auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM, without restriction on account of 

9) 
securities shall not be processed unless the securities are held in dematerialized form. Transfers of equity shares in 

converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent 
(“RTA”), Link Intime India Private Limited at rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in. 

10) 
mobile numbers, PAN, power of attorney registration, Bank Mandate details, etc. to their Depository Participant (“DP”) 
in case the shares are held in electronic form and to the RTA in case the shares are held in physical form, in prescribed 
Form No. ISR-1, quoting their folio number and enclosing the self-attested supporting documents. Further, Members 
may note that SEBI has mandated the submission of PAN by every participant in the securities market.
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11) th March, 2023 mandate to 

before 30th September, 2023. In case a holder of physical securities fails to furnish PAN, nomination, contact details, 
bank account details and specimen signature by 1st October, 2023, RTA will be obligated to freeze such folios.

 The securities in the frozen folios shall be eligible to receive payments (including dividend) and lodge grievances only 
after furnishing the complete documents. If the securities continue to remain frozen as on 31st

the Company shall refer such securities to the administering authority under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) 

had sent communication intimating about the submission of above details to all the Members holding shares in physical 
form.

12) As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making a nomination is available for the Members in 
respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their nominations are requested to register 
the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. If a Member desires to cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh 
nomination, he may submit the same in Form No. SH-14. Members who are not desiring to register for Nomination or 

RTA’s website at www.linkintime.co.in. Members are requested to submit the said form to their DP’s in case the shares 
are held in electronic form and to the RTA in case the shares are held in physical form, quoting their folio no.

13) Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio are requested to send to 

after making the requisite changes. The consolidation will be processed in demat form.

14) Members desiring inspection of statutory registers and other relevant documents may send their request in writing to 
the Company at investorrelations@muktaarts.com.

15) To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email address are requested to register 

shares are held by them in physical form.

16) In terms of SEBI circular dated 9th December, 2020, on e-voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
Members holding securities in Demat mode are allowed to vote through their Demat account maintained with 
Depositories and DP’s. Members are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their Demat 
account to access the e-voting facility.

17) According to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing Regulations and MCA Circulars, the Company is 
providing the facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the businesses to be transacted at the AGM. The 
Company has engaged the services of NSDL for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. 
The facility of casting votes by a Member using remote e-voting system as well as e-voting during the AGM will be 
provided by NSDL.

18) 
19th September, 2024, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting period commences on Tuesday, 
24th September, 2024 at 9:00 a.m. (IST) and ends on Thursday, 26th September, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. (IST). The remote 
e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, 
the Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to 

number of votes, the resolution passed by remote e-voting are deemed to have been passed as if they have been 
passed at the AGM.

19) Members will be provided with the facility for voting through an electronic voting system during the proceedings at 
the AGM and Members participating at the AGM, who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting, will be eligible to 
exercise their right to vote during such proceedings of the AGM. Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting 
prior to the AGM will also be eligible to participate at the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again on such 
resolutions for which the Members has already cast the vote through remote e-voting.

20) 
of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote during the AGM.

as e-voting during the AGM. Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual Members, who acquire 
shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after the dispatch of this Notice and holding shares 

at evoting@nsdl.com. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting, then you can use your 
existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by 
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contact at 022–4886 7000. In case of Individual Member holding securities in Demat mode and who acquires share of 

date may follow steps mentioned in the Notice. Any person who is in receipt of this notice but is not a Member as on 

name appear in the Register of Members as on Friday, 30th August, 2024.

22) 
appointed as the Scrutinizer by the Board of Directors of the Company to scrutinize the remote e-voting process fairly 
and transparently.

23) The scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, unblock the votes cast through e-voting (votes cast 
during the AGM and votes cast through remote e-voting) and shall submit, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the 
total votes cast in favour or against, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the 
same. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be communicated to the stock exchanges within 
two working days, on which the Company’s shares are listed and will also be available on Company’s website at www.
muktaarts.com.

24) Members are encouraged to submit their questions in advance, from their registered email address, mentioning their 

muktaarts.com before 5:00 p.m. (IST) on Monday, 23rd September, 2024.

25) Members are requested to note that, dividends if not encashed for a consecutive period of 7 years from the date 
of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (“IEPF”). The shares in respect of such unclaimed dividends are also liable to be transferred to 
the demat account of the IEPF Authority. In view of this, Members are requested to claim their dividends from the 

to IEPF, may claim the same by making an online application to the IEPF Authority in web Form No. IEPF-5 available 
on www.mca.gov.in. For further details, please refer to Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Annual 
Report.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-voting system

A) Login method for e-voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual Members holding securities in demat 
mode

 Login method for Individual Members holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of Members  Login Method
Individual Members holding 
securities in demat mode 
with NSDL

nsdl.com either on a personal computer or on a mobile. On the e-services home 
page click on the  icon under “Login” which is available 

IDeAS” section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-voting 
services under value added services. Click on “Access to e-voting” under 
e-voting services and you will be able to see e-voting page. Click on Company 
name or e-voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to 
e-voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2) If you are not registered for IDeAS e-services, option to register is available at 
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3) Visit the e-voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

mobile. Once the home page of e-voting system is launched, click on the icon 
“Login”
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat 

shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-voting page. Click on Company 
name or e-voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to 
e-voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

NSDL Speede” facility by scan-
ning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

 
Individual Members holding 
securities in demat mode 
with CDSL

1) 
existing User ID and Password. Option will be made available to reach e-voting 

-
quested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & new 
system Myeasi tab and then use your existing my easi User ID and Password.

2) 
for eligible Companies where the e-voting is in progress as per the information 
provided by Company. By clicking the e-voting option, the user will be able to see 
e-voting page of the e-voting service provider for casting your vote during the 
remote e-voting period or joining virtual meeting and voting during the meeting.

 Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-voting 
service providers, so that the user can visit the e-voting service providers’ website 
directly.

CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & new system Myeasi tab 
and then click on registration option.

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-voting page by providing Demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from e-voting link available on www.cdslindia.com 
home page.

 The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 
Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user 
will be able to see the e-voting option where the e-voting is in progress and able 
to directly access the system of all e-voting service provide

Individual Members (holding 
securities in demat mode) 
login through their depository 
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

in, you will be able to see e-voting option. Click on e-voting option, you will be redirected 

e-voting feature. Click on Company name or e-voting service provider i.e. NSDL and 
you will be redirected to e-voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-voting period or joining virtual meeting and voting during the meeting.

 Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option 
available at abovementioned websites.
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 Helpdesk for Individual Members holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depositories i.e. NSDL and CDSL
Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Members holding securities 
in demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.com or call on 022-4886 7000.

Individual Members holding securities 
in demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free 
no. 1800 22 55 33.

B) Login method for e-voting and joining virtual meeting for Members other than Individual Members holding 
securities in demat and physical mode

 How to log-in to NSDL e-voting website?

1) Visit the e-voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
either on a personal computer or on a mobile.

2) Once the home page of e-voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login”
Member” section.

the screen.

 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL e-services i.e. IDeAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com with 
your existing IDeAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL e-services after using your log-in credentials, click on e-voting and 
you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4) Your User ID details are given below:
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) 
or Physical

 Your User ID is

a)  For Members who hold shares in demat account 
with NSDL

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******

b)  For Members who hold shares in demat account 
with CDSL

your user ID is 12**************
c)  For Members holding shares in Physical Form EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with 

the Company
For example, if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 
101456 then user ID is 101456001***

5) Password details for Members other than Individual Members are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.

communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the 
system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the Company, your ‘initial password’ is 
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the 

digit Client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of Client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those Members whose 
email IDs are not registered.

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or 
CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) “Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on  
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.com 
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d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-voting system of 
NSDL.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-voting system

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-voting system?

1) After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the Companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and 
whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

Meeting”.

3) Now you are ready for e-voting as the voting page opens.

General Guidelines for Members

1) It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 

correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 
User Reset Password?” option available at www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

2) Members are requested to note that SEBI vide its circular dated 30th May, 2022 have framed Standard Operating 
Procedure (SOP) for resolving investor grievances through arbitration mechanism. Link of the SEBI circular is as 
follows:

stock-exchange-arbitration-mechanism-for-disputesbetween-alisted-Company-and-or-registrars-to-an-issue-and-
share-transfer-agents-59345.html

3) In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Members and e-voting user manual 
for Members available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on 022-4886 7000 or send a request 
at evoting@nsdl.com

Process for those Members whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 
password and registration of e-mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of the Member, scanned copy of the share 

Aadhar Card) by e-mail to investorrelations@muktaarts.com.

ID), Name, client master or copy of consolidated account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to investorrelations@muktaarts.com. If you are an Individual 
Member holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. 
Login method for e-voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual Members holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively, Members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and password for e-voting by 
providing above mentioned documents.

Instructions for Members for e-voting on the day of AGM are as under:

1. The procedure for e-voting on the day of AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

the resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through 
e-voting system at the AGM.
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3. Members who have voted through remote e-voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible 
to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-voting on the day 
of AGM shall be the same person mentioned for remote e-voting.

Instructions for Members for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM are as under:

Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-voting system. After successful 
login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join Meeting” menu against Company name. You are requested 

have the User ID and Password for e-voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by 
following the remote e-voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further, Members will be required to allow camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during 
the meeting.

4. Please note that participants connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 

to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

By Order of the Board of Directors 
Mukta Arts Limited

Sd/- 
Hemal N. Pankhania 

 
ICSI Membership Number: ACS31426

 
Mukta House, Behind Whistling Woods Institute, 
Filmcity Complex, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 065 
CIN: L92110MH1982PLC028180 
Tel. No.: 022-3364 9400 
Email: investorrelations@muktaarts.com

Date:  
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure - I

DETAILS OF DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT
[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI Listing Regulations]

Name of the Director Mr. Subhash Ghai
DIN 00019803
Nationality Indian

areas
He is a Writer, Director, Producer and one of the most renowned 
names among Indians and globally for his excellent record as an 

contribution to Film & Media education.
During his journey of 50 years he has been honored with many awards 
including Life Time Achievement Award. Under his leadership, the 

Under his leadership and guidance Mukta A2 Cinemas has setup and 
built a chain of cinemas under the brand name of Mukta A2 Cinemas at 
various locations in India and Bahrain.
As Chairman & Founder of Whistling Woods International, he has been 

ever privately setup world-class media institute in India and ensuring 

Under his leadership and vision, within a short span of time since its 
inception, Whistling Woods International has established itself as a 

Shareholding in the Company as on  
31st March, 2024

1,24,97,990 shares

Directorships in other Listed Companies as 
on 31st March, 2024

CHL Limited

Chairman/Member of Committees in other 
Listed Companies as on 31st March, 2024

Nil

Listed Companies from which the Director 
has resigned from Directorship in last 3 
years

Nil

Inter-se relationship with other Directors and 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company

Mr. Rahul Puri, Managing Director of the Company is son-in-law.

By Order of the Board of Directors 
Mukta Arts Limited

Sd/- 
Hemal N. Pankhania 

 
ICSI Membership Number: ACS31426

 
Mukta House, Behind Whistling Woods Institute, 
Filmcity Complex, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 065 
CIN: L92110MH1982PLC028180 
Tel. No.: 022-3364 9400 
Email: investorrelations@muktaarts.com

Date:  
Place: Mumbai
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BOARD’S REPORT
Dear Members,

The Board of Directors are delighted to present the 42nd Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company 
st March, 2024.

In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), this Board’s Report is prepared based on 

contribution to the overall performance of the Company during the year under review.
st March, 2024 is summarised hereunder:

Particulars F.Y. 2023-24
(` In ’000)

F.Y. 2022-23
(` In ’000)

1,97,862.68 1,75,865.90
Less: Interest (60,536.14) (50,370.40)

1,37,326.54 1,25,495.50
Less: Depreciation (23,988.15) (20,567.83)

1,13,338.39 1,04,927.67
Less: Provision for taxation (11,100) (17,900.26)

2,128.68 (296.77)
Taxes for earlier years (1,024.94) (2,523.00)

1,03,342.13 84,207.65
0 0
0 0

1,03,342.13 84,207.65
Other comprehensive income 1,249.96 130.70
Ind AS 116 adjustments (7.00) 0
Add: Balance brought forward 6,09,883.42 52,55,61.16
Less: Transfer to General Reserve 0 0

7,14,468.51 6,09,883.42

Particulars F.Y. 2023-24 F.Y. 2022-23
Debt Equity Ratio 0.32 0.33

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

12 months from the balance sheet date)

5.60 5.56

Current Ratio

borrowings)

5.15 4.98

Trade receivables turnover ratio 1.25 1.25

Trade payables turnover 7.73 9.08

1.43 1.13

Return on Equity Ratio [%] 0.06 0.05

Return on Capital Employed Ratio [%] 0.07 0.07

Net Capital Turnover Ratio

current liability-Short term borrowings)

0.28 0.20

Reasons for variance exceeding 25%
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The calculation for above ratios (including restatement of prior year ratios, wherever necessary) is in accordance with 
formula prescribed by Guidance note on Schedule III issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Overview of Company’s Financial performance

year 2022-23.

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024, prepared in accordance 
with the applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), SEBI Listing Regulations and the Act, forms part of this Annual 
Report.

Dividend

To preserve the resources for future growth, the Company has not declared any dividend for the current year.

Transfer to Reserves

Your Company does not propose to transfer any amount to General Reserves.

Share Capital

The paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 is `11,29,26,000.

a) Buy-back of Securities

 The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.

b) Sweat Equity

 The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review.

c) Bonus Shares

 The Company has not issued any bonus shares during the year under review.

d) Employee Stock Option

 The Company has not provided any stock option scheme to the employees during the year under review.

e) Rights Issue of Equity Shares

 The Company has not issued any shares on right basis during the year under review.

f) 

under review.

Changes in the nature of business

During the year under review, there have been no changes in the nature of business conducted by the Company.

Material changes and commitments
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

of the most popular soaps on the channel. Monetisation of the Hindi Film library also continued steadily. Scripts have been 

Subsidiary Companies

As on 31st March, 2024, the Company has seven subsidiary Companies namely, Whistling Woods International Limited, 
Connect.1 Limited, Mukta Telemedia Limited, Mukta Creative Ventures Limited (Formerly Coruscant Tec Limited), *Mukta 
A2 Cinemas Private Limited (Formerly Mukta A2 Cinemas Limited), Mukta A2 Multiplex W.L.L, Bahrain and #Mukta V N 
Films Limited.

th June, 2024 passed an order approving the conversion of the 
Company from “Public Limited” to “Private Limited” and consequent change in the name of the Company from “Mukta A2 

th July, 2024.
#

Whistling Woods International Limited and Mukta A2 Cinemas Private Limited are material subsidiaries of the Company 
within the meaning of Regulation 16(1)(c) of SEBI Listing Regulations.

Whistling Woods International Limited (“WWI”) which is recognised as India’s premier Media, Entertainment, 
Communication and Creative Arts Institute, has had a highly active year. WWI’s roadmap of innovation has seen the 

Capture & Camera Tracking into our curriculum.

Further, WWI has also commenced development of curriculum and teaching methodologies in the innovative area of 

Academically, WWI has renewed its association with the Tata Institute of Social Sciences for awarding of Degrees for all 

WWI and WWI students travelling to these universities.

Mukta A2 Cinemas Private Limited (“MA2”) focussed on consolidation by closing down 9 screens at 4 loss-making 
locations and opening 20 screens at 6 new properties. Some of the existing properties with good potential have been 
earmarked for refurbishment to give them a new lease of life. So, from an opening screen count of 62 screens in 24 
locations, MA2 closed the year with 73 screens in 26 locations. The 14 screens under its JV with Asian Cinemas continue 
to perform. It has moved to a management model for 5 properties with 17 screens, located in Telangana and Gujarat. While 

year.

Mukta A2 Multiplex W.L.L
and Distribution for the 10 screen property in Dana Mall which the Company was earlier managing. Further, in connection 
with the agreement to manage a chain of multiplexes in Saudi Arabia, 5 cinemas are scheduled for launch in the next few 

Batin in November and 3 at Methneb in December. This will take the total tally to 32 screens.

Both the Dana Mall property and the Saudi Arabia business are already contributing revenue.

Another subsidiary of the Company, Connect.1 Limited monetises content on digital platforms.

Mukta Telemedia Limited is a subsidiary of the Company which handles production of TV-serials, management of event 
shows and entertainment software.

Mukta Creative Ventures Limited is a subsidiary providing mobile based solutions with a focus on content, applications 
and commerce.

The programming business of Mukta V N Films Limited is now performing steadily. As the exhibition sector returns to pre-
covid levels of business, its health also continues to improve. The number of Cinema screens that the Company services 
has grown during the year.

in Form AOC-1 is attached as Annexure-A to this Report.
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In accordance with Section 136 of the Act, the Audited Financial Statements, including the Consolidated Financial Statements 
and related information of the Company and Audited Accounts of each of its subsidiaries, are available on the website of 
the Company.

Corporate Governance

Your Company has been practicing the principles of good Corporate Governance over the years and it is a continuous 
and ongoing process. A detailed Report on Corporate Governance practices followed by the Company in terms of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations, is attached as Annexure-B
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance are provided separately in this Annual Report as Annexure-I.

Board of Directors

The Board of the Company is comprised of eminent persons with proven competence and integrity. Besides experience, 

devote adequate time to the meetings and preparation.

competencies of the Board of Directors is detailed in the Corporate Governance Report.

Board Diversity

Board encompassing diverse perspectives in thought, knowledge, skills, regional and industry experience, cultural and 
geographical backgrounds, age, ethnicity, race, and gender enhances its competitive edge. To formalize its commitment, the 
Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy as part of the NRC Policy, outlining its approach to fostering diversity among 
its Directo The policy can be accessed on the Company’s website.

Meetings of the Board of Directors

Regular meetings of the Board and its Committees are held to discuss and decide on various business policies, strategies, 

exceed 120 days. The detail of the meetings and the attendance of the Directors are mentioned in the Report on Corporate 
Governance which forms part of the Annual Report.

Committees of the Board

In compliance with the requirements of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has constituted various Board 
Committees including Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 
and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. Details of scope, constitution, terms of reference, number of meetings held 
during the year under review along with attendance of Committee Members therein forms part of the Corporate Governance 
Report which is an integral part of the Annual Report.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

Over the years, the Company has established a reputation for doing business with integrity and maintained zero tolerance 
towards any form of unethical behavior.

to report violations. The Policy also lays down the procedures to be followed to report violations, conducting investigations 

protection from reprisal to complainants. No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee of the Board. The 
Audit Committee oversees the functioning of this policy. Protected disclosures can be made by a whistle-blower through 
several channels to report actual or suspected frauds and violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

Extract of Annual Return

As 

AUDIT AND AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors

, were re-
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 39th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) held on 23rd September, 
2021 until the conclusion of 43rd AGM to be held in the year 2025.
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for the year ended 31st March, 2024 which forms part of the Annual Report.

of the Company forms part of this Annual Report.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204(1) of the Act read with rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

The Secretarial Audit Report of the Company issued by Secretarial Auditors in Form No. MR-3 for the year ended 31st 
March, 2024 is attached as Annexure-C to this Report.

or disclaimer. Secretarial Audit Report is self-explanatory and therefore, does not require any further comments and 
explanation.

Secretarial Audit Report of Unlisted Material Subsidiaries

Secretarial Audit Report of Whistling Woods International Limited and Mukta A2 Cinemas Private Limited (Formerly Mukta 
A2 Cinemas Limited), Unlisted Material Subsidiaries of the Company issued by 

annexed as Annexure-D to this Report.

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report

Pursuant to Regulation 24A of SEBI Listing Regulations readwith SEBI as issued from time to time, has mandated listed 
entities to conduct an Annual Secretarial Compliance Audit. This Audit is performed by a Practicing Company Secretary, 
which ensures compliance with all applicable SEBI Regulations, circulars, and guidelines.

The Secretarial Compliance Report is separate from the Secretarial Audit Report submitted under Form No. MR-3 and must 

st 
March, 2024.

Internal Auditors

Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration No. 130993W) to conduct the Internal Audit of the Company for the 

Reporting of frauds by Auditors

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and Secretarial Auditors have not reported any 

Section 143(12) of the Act.

Cost Audit

The Company is not engaged in the production of goods or providing services as prescribed by the Central Government 
under Section 148(1) of the Act and rule 3 of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014. Hence, maintenance of 
cost records by the Company is not required.

Compliance of Secretarial Standards

Declaration by Independent Directors

criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations. 
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Code of Conduct. The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company hold the highest standards of 

aware of any circumstances or situations that exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability 

authority.

Rules, 2014, as amended, Independent Directors of the Company have included their names in the data bank of Independent 

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments by the Company
st 

March, 2024.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements made with related party(ies)

approval and review procedures. The Policy on Related Party Transactions, formulated by the Audit Committee and 
approved by the Board, is publicly available on the Company’s website.

ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis, and with prior approval from the Audit Committee. For repetitive 
transactions, the Audit Committee granted periodic approvals, and unforeseen transactions were authorized under omnibus 
approvals. Further, detailed information on transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s 

Further, none of the contracts, arrangements, or transactions with related parties required approval of the Board or Members 
under Section 188(1) of the Act and Regulation 23(4) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

There are no contracts, arrangements, transactions with Related Parties which are not at arm’s length basis, therefore, no 
information is required to be reported in form AOC-2 in terms of Section 134(3)(h) read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Section 188 of the Act.

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

(a) Energy Conservation measures taken by the Company

and other devices that meet stringent environmental standards, opting for higher star ratings whenever feasible.

(b) Technology Absorption

 The Company’s research and development initiative mainly consists of ideation of new subjects for our content 

integrated player in the entertainment industry and our business is such that there is limited scope for new technology 
absorption, adaptation and innovation.

 However, the Company is proposing to install Solar panels. Solar power is pollution-free and causes no greenhouse 
gases to be emitted after installation. Reduced dependence on foreign oil and fossil fuels also resulting in reduced 
utility bills.

Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo

Particulars regarding Foreign Exchange required under the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in the notes forming part of accounts which forms part of the Annual Report.

Risk Management

The Company has in place Risk Management Policy, pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Act. The risk management 

business and functions are systematically addressed through mitigation actions on a periodic basis.

Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”)

In accordance with Section 135 of the Act, read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 
as amended, the Company has established a CSR Committee. Statutory disclosures pertaining to the CSR Committee and 
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an Annual Report on CSR Activities are included in this Report as Annexure-E. The CSR Policy, recommended by the CSR 
Committee and approved by the Board, is accessible on the Company’s website at www.muktaarts.com.

Details of meetings and attendance of the Members at such Meetings are mentioned in the Report on Corporate Governance, 
which forms part of the Annual Report.

Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(p) of the Act, a structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into 
consideration of various aspects of the Board’s functioning, composition of the Board and its Committees, culture, execution 

The evaluation of all the Directors and the Board as a whole was conducted based on the criteria and framework adopted 
by the Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Director was carried out by the 
Independent Directo The Board of Directors expresses their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

The Board noted the key improvement areas emerging from this exercise and action plans to address the same.

Appointment/Re-appointment of Directors during the year

Mr. Subhash Ghai (DIN: 00019803) was re-appointed as the Chairman, Executive Director of the Company at the Board 
Meeting held on 25th May, 2023 for a further period of 5 years commencing from 30th May, 2023 to 29th May, 2028 as 
recommended by Nomination and Remuneration Committee, which was subsequently approved by the Members of the 
Company through Postal Ballot.

Mr. Rahul Puri (DIN:01925045) was re-appointed as Managing Director of the Company at the Board Meeting held on 25th 
May, 2023 for a further period of 5 years commencing from 30th May, 2023 to 29th May, 2028 as recommended by Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, which was subsequently approved by the Members of the Company through Postal Ballot.

In terms of Section 152 of the Act, Mr. Parvez Farooqui (DIN: 00019853), Non-Executive Director of the Company, being 
liable to retire by rotation, was re-appointed by the Members at the AGM held on 27th September, 2023.

Re-appointment of Director retiring by rotation

In terms of provisions of the Act, Mr. Subhash Ghai (DIN: 00019803), Chairman, Executive Director of the Company, retires 
by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, seeks re-appointment. A resolution seeking the re-appointment forms 

annexure to the Notice of AGM.

Key Managerial Personnels

Sr. No. Name Designation
1. Mr. Subhash Ghai Chairman, Executive Director
2. Mr. Rahul Puri Managing Director
3. Mr. Prabuddha Dasgupta
4. Ms. Hemal N. Pankhania

Deposits

No public deposits have been accepted or renewed by the Company during the year under review pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 73 and 74 of the Act read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Hence, the requirement 
for furnishing of details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act or the details of deposits which are not in 
compliance with Chapter V of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

concern status of the Company and its future operations.

Internal Financial Control systems and their adequacy

Your Company has a proper and adequate system of internal controls. These controls ensure transactions are authorised, 
recorded and reported correctly and assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorised use or disposition. 

within the meaning of the Act.

thrust of internal audit is to test and review controls, appraisal of risks and business processes, besides benchmarking 
controls with best practices in the industry.
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Based on the report of Internal Auditors, departmental heads undertake corrective action in their respective areas and 

systems and suggests improvements to strengthen the same.

The Audit Committee and the Board are of the opinion that the Company has sound Internal Financial Control commensurate 

Human Resources

Human Resource is considered as one of the most critical resources in the business which can be continuously smoothened 

inculcate the spirit of dedication and loyalty amongst them towards strengthening the Company’s Polices and Systems. 
All personnel continue to have healthy, cordial and harmonious approach thereby enhancing the contributory value of the 
Company.

Further, statutory disclosures w.r.t. Human Resources are as under:

i) Your Company has in place Prevention of Sexual Harassment (POSH) policy in accordance with the requirements of 
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The essence of the 
policy is communicated to all employees of the group companies as well at regular intervals through assimilation and 
awareness programs.

ii) Aligning with the guidelines prescribed under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013, Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee and the composition of the said 
Committee is as under:

Ms. Hemal N. Pankhania
Mr. Prabuddha Dasgupta
Mr. Ravi Gupta Advisor - Business, Finance and Accounts
Mr. Prem Taparia General Manager - Finance and Accounts
Ms. Pratima Jamwal External Member

 During the year under review, no complaints were reported to the Board. Your Company has complied with the 
provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

iii) Information under Section 197 of the Act, read with rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

a. The ratio of remuneration of the Directors to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for 

`2,89,999.

 The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the 

Name of the Director Designation Ratio
Mr. Subhash Ghai Chairman, Executive Director 29.61
Mr. Rahul Puri Managing Director 21.65

Name Designation % increase
Mr. Subhash Ghai Chairman, Executive Director Nil
Mr. Rahul Puri Managing Director 7.93
Mr. Prabuddha Dasgupta 7.99
Ms. Hemal N. Pankhania Nil

d. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2024: 57
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e. Average percentage increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel 

remuneration:

 that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:

Particulars of Employees

Information as per Rule 5(2) of Chapter XIII, Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014:

Top Ten Employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the year:
Sr. 
No.

Name of the 
Employee

Designation Nature of 
Employment 
(Permanent/
Contractual)

Experience 
(in years)

Date of
Commencement 

of
Employment

Age 
(in years)

Last 
Employment 

Held

Remuneration 
(`)

1. Mr. Subhash Ghai Chairman - Executive 
Director

Permanent B.com and Diploma in 
Cinema from Film & 
Television Institute of 
India

57 09.07.1982 81 Mukta Arts Since 
inception

 85,87,400

2. Mr. Rahul Puri Managing Director Permanent
College - London 
and Bsc-Business 
Management

25 01.04.2004 46 Nimbus 
Communications 

Limited

62,79,846

3. Mr. Prabuddha 
Dasgupta

Permanent Chartered Accountant 32 07.07.2014 58 Neo Sports 
Broadcast 

Private Limited

52,81,260

4. Mr. Siraj Farooqui Chief Operating 

Studio

Permanent Inter Arts 48 01.01.1987 70 Mukta Arts Since 
inception

 50,76,663

5. Mr. Prem Taparia General Manager-
Finance & Accounts

Permanent Chartered Accountant 20 25.07.2007 44 Simplex Mills 
Company 
Limited

31,93,188

6. Mr. Sanjay Ghai Chief Operating 

Exhibition

Permanent Graduate 41 09.01.2008 58 Mukta Shakti 
Combine

30,54,000

7. Ms. Hemal N. 
Pankhania

Company Secretary 
and Compliance 

Permanent B.Com, Company 
Secretary and 
Bachelor in Laws

13 22.08.2022 37 Gigaplex Estate 
Private Limited 
(Raheja Group 

Company)

15,50,004

8. Mr. Sameer 
Farooqui

Sr. Manager - 
Productions

Permanent Bachelor of Commerce 32 17.09.1997 53 Cinerad 
Communication

14,69,626

9. Mr. Seemant Raj Web Programmer Permanent Diploma in Advance 
Computing

17 15.09.2007 47 Mukta Arts since 
inception

12,35,185

10. Mr. Gopi Nair Studio Manager Permanent IXth 37 31.05.1998 60 Sumeet Films 9,01,872

Disclosure under Section 197(14) of the Companies Act, 2013

Mr. Subhash Ghai (DIN:00019803) Chairman, Executive Director of the Company received remuneration of `30,00,000 
(Thirty Lakhs Only) and Mr. Rahul Puri (DIN:01925045) Managing Director of the Company received professional fees of 
`34,49,957 (Thirty Four Lakhs Forty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Fifty Seven Only) from Whistling Woods International 

Proceedings under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
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Disclosure regarding exercise of voting rights by employees under Section 67(3)(c) of the Act

Disclosure under Section 67(3)(c) of the Act read with rule 16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 
2014, with respect to voting rights not exercised directly by the employees of the Company is not applicable as there are no 
instance of voting rights not exercised directly by the employees of the Company.

Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI Listing Regulations, top 1000 listed entities based on market capitalization are required 
to furnish Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report (“BRSR”).

However, as the Company do not fall under the list of top 1000 Companies based on market capitalization, the requirement 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under Regulation 34 of SEBI Listing 
Regulations, is presented in a separate section forming part of the Annual Report.

Health, Safety and Environment

As a responsible corporate citizen, your Company lays considerable emphasis on health, safety aspects of its human 
capital, operations and overall working conditions. Thus, being constantly aware of its obligation towards maintaining and 
improving the environment, all possible steps are being taken to meet the toughest environmental standards on pollution, 

Director’s Responsibility Statement

requirements of the Act and guidelines issued by SEBI.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, to the best of their knowledge and based on the information and 
explanations received from the Company, Directors make the following statements:

i) In the preparation of Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024, the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

ii) The Directors had selected such accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities;

iv) That the Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis;

vi) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 

Acknowledgements

Your Directors express their deep sense of gratitude to the Artists, Technicians, Film Distributors, Exhibitors, Bankers, 
Stakeholders and Business Associates for their co-operation and support and look forward to their continued support in 
future.

Your Directors also place on record, their appreciation for the contribution, commitment and dedication to your Company’s 
performance by the employees of the Company at all levels.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
Mukta Arts Limited 

Sd/- 
Subhash Ghai 

Chairman 
DIN: 00019803

Date:  
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure-A

Form AOC – 1

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Amount in `)

Name of the subsidiary Connect.1 
Limited

Mukta 
Telemedia 

Limited

Mukta 
Creative 
Ventures 
Limited

Mukta A2 
Multiplex 

W.L.L.

Mukta A2 
Cinemas 

Private Limited
(Formerly 
Mukta A2 
Cinemas 
Limited)

Whistling 
Woods 

International 
Limited

Mukta V 
N Films 
Limited*

The date since when subsidiary was 
acquired
Reporting period for the subsidiary 

holding Company's reporting period

April-March April-March April-March April-March April-March April-March April-March

Reporting currency and Exchange 
rate as on the last date of the relevant 

subsidiaries

N.A. N.A. N.A. BHD N.A. N.A. N.A.

Paid up Share capital 6,00,000 5,00,000 75,00,000 9,94,89,600 1,50,00,000 20,00,00,000 6,36,00,000
Reserves and Surplus 10,79,201 27,14,887 (58,56,244) (37,01,88,642) (82,42,02,031) (96,88,40,124) (32,27,474)
Total Assets 17,45,422 32,38,487 16,67,356 7,56,55,650 85,65,71,243 51,02,69,909 15,27,09,903
Total Liabilities 66,221 23,600 23,600 34,63,54,692 1,66,57,73,274 1,27,91,10,033 9,23,37,377
Investments 0 0 0 0 45,000 0 0
Turnover 2,15,167 6,09,063 1,04,260 21,17,35,435 1,01,39,17,116 54,48,24,771 2,24,47,344

(29,850) 5,70,258 54,277 (2,11,73,214) (9,76,47,302) (5,87,84,687) 26,89,203
Provision for taxation 0 0 0 0 (57,33,539) 0 0

(29,850) 5,70,258 54,277 (2,11,73,214) (9,19,13,763) (5,87,84,687) 26,89,203
Proposed Dividend 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Extent of shareholding  
(in percentage)

100% 99.92% 100% 60% 70% 84.99% 51.89%

Notes:
1)  Names of the subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nil
2)  Names of the subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint 
Ventures

Nil

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

Extent of Holding (in percentage)

Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet

Considered in Consolidation
Not Considered in Consolidation

Notes:
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Annexure-C

Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
 

To, 
The Members 
Mukta Arts Limited 
Mukta House, Behind Whistling Woods Institute, 
Filmcity Complex, Goregaon (E), Mumbai – 400065.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Mukta Arts Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”), incorporated on 7th September, 1982 

Complex, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400065. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis 

during the conduct of secretarial audit. We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 
st March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 

the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 
the reporting made hereinafter:

Company, for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2024, according to the following provisions of (including any statutory 

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and the Bye-Laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings - Not Applicable to the 
Company during the Audit period;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’), as amended from time to time:-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

2021 - Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 - 
Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - Not Applicable to the 
Company during the Audit period;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client - Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit 
period;

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 - Not Applicable to 
the Company during the Audit period;

j) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 - Not 
Applicable to the Company during the Audit period.
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the Company for the Compliances under the applicable Acts and the Regulations to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines 
and Standards mentioned above to the extent applicable except our comments and observations as stated below.

1) As at 31st March, 2024, the Company’s investment in its subsidiary (including deemed investment), Whistling woods 
International Limited (WWIL) a joint venture between the Company and Maharashtra Film Stage and Cultural 
Development Corporation Limited (MFSCDCL), aggregates to `
interest receivable and rent receivable aggregate to `

 As fully explained in Note 42 of Audited Financial Statements, the Order of February 9, 2012 passed by the High 
Court of judicature at Bombay (‘High Court’), had quashed the joint Venture Agreement (‘JVA’) between the Company 
and MFSCDCL. MFSCDCL raised net demand of `

2014 which required deposit of `
01 to 2013-14 and payment of `

`
`

of Maharashtra and MFSCDCL challenged the order of the High Court in the Supreme Court which was dismissed by 

under Non-Current Other Financial Assets in the Standalone Financial Statements to be adjusted on the settlement of 
the case. Management of WWIL informs that these will be accounted as an expense, if required, on the settlement of 
the case.

based on its assessment of the merits of the case, plans for the future and support provided by its holding Company.

2) The Company has submitted the proceedings of AGM held on 27th September, 2023 within 24 hours.

3) The Company had voluntarily applied for delisting from The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) w.e.f. 31st March, 

st March, 2015. On account of non-receipt of any response 

4) The Company has failed to accrue interest in Financial Year 2023-24 for Inter Corporate Deposits previously given. The 
Company is in process of recovering the dues.

5) During the year under review, the Company had taken approval under Section 197 and other applicable provisions 
of the Act read with rules made thereunder for re-appointment of Executive Directors including remuneration through 
Postal Ballot notice dated 25th May, 2023. In our view, remuneration paid to Executive Directors exceeds the limit 

 Further, we hereby advised to the Company, that discrete Resolution(s) are required to be passed for aforesaid matter. 
As a result, the Company shall seek the necessary discrete approvals from the Members of the Company within the 
designated timelines.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 

Personnel. However, the Managing Director and Chairman-Executive Director of the Company were re-appointed during 
the period under review.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings and to respective Directors for Committee Meetings, 
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 

the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting including meeting through video conferencing.
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All decisions made at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings have unanimous consent of Directors as recorded in the 
minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

a) The Members of the Company through Postal Ballot approved re-appointment of Mr. Subhash Ghai (DIN: 00019803) 
as Chairman, Executive Director of the Company and re-appointment of Mr. Rahul Puri (DIN: 01925045) as Managing 
Director of the Company by passing Special Resolutions on 16th August, 2023.

Investment in Material Subsidiary by passing Special Resolution on 4th April, 2024.

For KDA & Associates 
(Formerly known as KDT & Associates) 

Practicing Company Secretaries

Sd/- 
Nikunj Makwana 

Partner 
Membership No.: ACS 62943 

Date:  COP No.: 23501 
Place: Mumbai  PR No.: 5840/2024 

UDIN: A062943F000957111
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To, 
The Members 
Mukta Arts Limited 
Mukta House, Behind Whistling Woods Institute, 
Filmcity Complex, Goregaon (E), Mumbai – 400065

Our report of event date is to read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

reasonable basis for our opinion.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events, etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation, standards is the responsibility 

For KDA & Associates 
(Formerly known as KDT & Associates) 

Practicing Company Secretaries

Sd/- 
Nikunj Makwana 

Partner 
Membership No.: ACS 62943 

Date:  COP No.: 23501 
Place: Mumbai  PR No.: 5840/2024 

UDIN: A062943F000957111
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Annexure-D

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

To, 
The Members 
Whistling Woods International Limited 
Whistling Woods Institute,  
Dada Saheb Phalke Chitra Nagari,  
Goregaon (E), Mumbai- 400 065

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Whistling Woods International Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”), incorporated on 10th 

Phalke Chitra Nagari, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 065.

statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

 Company’s 

during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 
covering the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 
the reporting made hereinafter:

for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2024 as made available to us, according to the following provisions of (including 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings - Not Applicable to the 
Company during the Audit period;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’):

 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011- Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period;

 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 - Not Applicable 
to the Company during the audit period;

 
2021- Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period;

 The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 - Not Applicable to the 
Company during the audit period;

 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 - Not Applicable 
to the Company during the audit period;

 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 - 
Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period;
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 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - Not Applicable to the 
Company during the audit period;

 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 - Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period;

 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 - Not Applicable to 
the Company during the audit periods;

 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 
- Not applicable to the Company during the audit period.

the Company for the Compliances under the other laws (Acts and the regulations) as may be applicable to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards etc. mentioned above to the extent applicable.

We report that, Majority of equity shares have been dematerialised. However, for a few remaining Members, the Company 
has not received any request for dematerialisation. Additionally, one application is pending before Depository Participant for 
dematerialisation.

We further report that-

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted and the Company has complied with the provisions relating to 
appointment of Independent Directo Further, there were no changes in composition of the Board of Directors during the 
period under review.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, including committees thereof, along with agenda 
and detailed notes on agenda were sent as per the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder and a system exists 

participation at the meeting. During the period under review, the Directors attended some of the Board Meetings through 

All decisions made at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried through the unanimous consent of all the Board 
of Directors and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For KDA & Associates 
(Formerly Known as KDT & Associates) 

Practicing Company Secretaries

Sd/- 
Ratish Tagde 

Partner 
Membership No.: FCS 6162 

COP No.: 22018 
Date: PR No.: 5840/2024 
Place: Mumbai  UDIN: F006162F000933321
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To, 
The Members 
Whistling Woods International Limited
Whistling Woods Institute,  
Dada Saheb Phalke Chitra Nagari,  
Goregaon (E), Mumbai- 400 065

Our report of event date is to read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

reasonable basis for our opinion.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events and on the suits pending against the Company in the Court.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation, standards is the responsibility 

For KDA & Associates 
(Formerly Known as KDT & Associates) 

Practicing Company Secretaries

Sd/- 
Ratish Tagde 

Partner 
Membership No.: FCS 6162 

COP No.: 22018 
Date: PR No.: 5840/2024 
Place: Mumbai  UDIN: F006162F000933321 
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Annexure-D

Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
 

To, 
The Members 
Mukta A2 Cinemas Private Limited 
(Formerly Mukta A2 Cinemas Limited) 
Mukta House, Behind Whistling Woods Institute,  
Filmcity Complex, Goregaon (E), Mumbai- 400 065

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Mukta A2 Cinemas Private Limited (Formerly Mukta A2 Cinemas Private Limited), (hereinafter called 
“the Company”), incorporated on 16th

Mukta House, Behind Whistling Woods Institute, Filmcity Complex, Goregaon (E), Mumbai - 400 065. Secretarial Audit was 

expressing our opinion thereon.

 Company’s 

during the conduct of secretarial audit. We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 
st March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 

the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 
the reporting made hereinafter:

st March, 2024 as made available to us, according to the following provisions of (including 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings- Not Applicable during the 
period under review;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’):

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011- Not Applicable during the period under review;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 - Not Applicable 
during the period under review;

2021 - Not Applicable during the period under review;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 - Not Applicable during the period under review;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 - Not Applicable 
during the period under review;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018- 
Not Applicable during the period under review;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - Not Applicable during 
the period under review;



35

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 - Not Applicable during the period under review;

i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 - Not Applicable 
during the period under review;

j) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 - Not 
Applicable during the period under review;

the Company for the Compliances under the applicable Acts, Laws and the Regulations to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards etc. mentioned above to the extent applicable except our comments as stated below.

Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 14th March, 2024.

2) Except for 1 (One) Equity Share of the Company for which an application is pending with the Depository Participant for 
dematerialisation, all the equity shares are held by the Members in dematerialised form.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Director, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Director. There were no changes in the Composition of the Board of Directo However, the Non-
Executive Director and Whole Time Director of the Company were re-appointed during the period under review.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, and adequate system exists for seeking 

at the meeting including participation through video conferencing.

Other Audio Video Means.

All decisions are carried through the unanimous consent of all the Board of Directors and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

The Members of the Company at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 14th March, 2024 had approved the following 
events:

1. ` 5,00,00,000 (Rupees Five Crores) 
divided into 50,00,000 (Fifty Lakhs) Equity Shares to ` 5,00,00,000 (Rupees Five Crores) divided into 39,50,000 
(Thirty Nine Lakhs Fifty Thousand) Equity Shares of ` 10 (Rupees Ten) each aggregating to ` 3,95,00,000 (Three 

` 10 (Rupees Ten) 
each aggregating to 1,05,00,000 (Rupees One Crore Five Lakhs) and consequent change in the Memorandum of 
Association of the Company.

2. Increase in Authorised Share Capital of the Company from ` 5,00,00,000 (Rupees Five Crores) divided into 39,50,000 
(Thirty Nine Lakhs Fifty Thousand) Equity Shares of `10 (Rupees Ten) each aggregating to ` 3,95,00,000 (Three 

`10 (Rupees Ten) 
each aggregating to ` 1,05,00,000 (Rupees One Crore Five Lakhs) to ` 25,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty Five Crores) 
divided into 39,50,000 (Thirty Nine Lakhs Fifty Thousand) Equity Shares of ` 10 (Rupees Ten) each aggregating to 
`
`10 (Rupees Ten) each aggregating to ` 1,05,00,000 (Rupees One Crore Five Lakhs) and 2,000 (Two Thousand) 
Preference Shares of ` 1,00,000 (Rupees One Lakh) each aggregating to `20,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty Crores) and 
consequent change in the Memorandum of Association of the Company.
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3. 

th June, 2024 passed an order approving the conversion of the 

For KDA & Associates 
(Formerly Known as KDT & Associates) 

Practicing Company Secretaries

Sd/- 
Ratish Tagde 

Partner 
Membership No.: FCS 6162 

Date:  COP No.: 22018 
Place: Mumbai  PR No.: 5840/2024 

UDIN: F006162F000933132
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To, 
The Members, 
Mukta A2 Cinemas Private Limited 
(Formerly Mukta A2 Cinemas Limited) 
Mukta House, Behind Whistling Woods Institute,  
Filmcity Complex, Goregaon (E), Mumbai - 400 065

Our report of event date is to read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

reasonable basis for our opinion.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations, happening of events.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation, standards is the responsibility 

For KDA & Associates 
(Formerly Known as KDT & Associates) 

Practicing Company Secretaries

Sd/- 
Ratish Tagde 

Partner 
Membership No.: FCS 6162 

Date:   COP No.: 22018 
Place: Mumbai  PR No.: 5840/2024 

UDIN: F006162F000933132



38

Annexure-E

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES FOR 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24

1) Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

 To contribute to the social and economic development of the communities in which the Company operates. In doing 
so, the Company will build a better, sustainable way of life for the weaker sections of society and raise the country’s 
human development index.

CSR programme framework is both in line with the Company’s long-term commitment to building positive value for the 

to the Act.

2) Composition of CSR Committee

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Member Designation / Nature of Directorship Number of meetings 
held during the year

Number of meetings 
attended during the year

1. Chairman and Independent Director 2 2
2. Mr. Rahul Puri Member and Managing Director 2 2
3. Mr. Parvez Farooqui Member and Non-Executive Director 2 2

3) Web-link where Composition of CSR committee and CSR Policy approved by the Board are disclosed on the 
website of the Company

a) Composition of CSR Committee:

Committee.pdf

b) CSR Policy:

4) Details of impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014: Not Applicable

5) 
 Nil

6) `13,95,73,516

7)  ` 27,91,471

 Nil

 Nil

` 27,91,471

8) 
Total amount 
spent for the 

(in `)

Amount Unspent (in `)
Total amount transferred to 

unspent CSR account as per 
Section 135(6)

Schedule VII as per second proviso to Section 
135(5)

Amount Date of transfer Name of the 
Fund

Amount Date of transfer

27,91,471 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

 Company does not have any 
ongoing project.
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Sr. 
No.

Name 
of the 

Project

Item from the list of activities in 
schedule VII to the Act

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No)

Location of the project Amount 
spent for 

the project  
(in `)

Mode of 
implementation 

- Direct (Yes/
No)

Mode of implementation - 
Through implementing agency

State District Name CSR registration 
number

1. Promoting 
Education

Promoting education, including special 
education and employment enhancing 
vocation skills especially among children, 

and livelihood enhancement projects.

Yes Maharashtra Mumbai 27,91,471 No Whistling 
Woods 

International 
Foundation

CSR00029471

Total 27,91,471

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: N.A.

 ` 27,91,471

 Nil
Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in `)

1. 27,91,471
2. 27,91,471
3. Nil
4. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Nil

5. Nil

9) 
Sr. 
No.

Preceding 

years

Amount 
transferred to 
unspent CSR 

account under 
Section 135(6)

(in `)

Amount 
spent in the 

reporting 

year
(in `)

Amount transferred to any fund 

per Section 135(6), if any

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 

(in `)

Name of 
the Fund

Amount
(in `)

Date of 
transfer

1. 2022-23 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2. 2021-22 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
3. 2020-21 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

 
N.A.

10) In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired 
 Company has not created or acquired any capital asset through CSR spent 

11) 
135(5): N.A.

By Order of the Board of Directors  
Mukta Arts Limited

 Sd/- Sd/- 
 Rahul Puri Kewal Handa 
 Managing Director Chairman of CSR Committee 
 DIN: 01925045 DIN: 00056826

Date:  
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure-B

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Mukta Arts Limited views Corporate Governance as a fundamental tool for maximizing value across all stakeholder 
groups, including investors, employees, members, customers, suppliers, the environment and the community at large. Our 
commitment to good governance is ingrained in the organizational culture and mindset. We draw inspiration from robust 
governance and disclosure practices established within our group.

Integrity and transparency form the cornerstone of our corporate governance framework, essential for cultivating and 
maintaining trust among our stakeholders consistently. We strictly adhere to all relevant provisions of the SEBI Listing 

Our Company upholds the highest standards of governance practices, emphasizing integrity, transparency and accountability.

Our Corporate Governance Philosophy is reinforced by the implementation of comprehensive policies, including the Code 
of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management, robust Board processes and a Code of Conduct to Prevent Insider 
Trading in Mukta Arts Securities.

Furthermore, adherence to SEBI Listing Regulations empowers our Board to make impartial decisions, ensuring objectivity 
and transparency in all aspects of management and corporate dealings. The Governance Guidelines, encompassing Board 
composition, roles of the Chairman and Directors, Board diversity, independence criteria, Director’s tenure and retirement 
age and Board committees, are meticulously followed. These guidelines empower the Board with the necessary authority 

A Report on compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions as prescribed under the SEBI Listing Regulations is 
given below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A. Duties and functions of the Board

 The primary duty of the Board is to promote both short-term and long-term success for the Company by ensuring 
sustainable business practices, that enhance value for its stakeholde In pursuit of this goal, the Board establishes the 
Company’s corporate culture, upholds rigorous ethical standards in corporate conduct and maintains transparency in 
all business dealings.

 Furthermore, the Board is charged with supervising the Company’s operations and providing guidance to the 

monitoring operational performance and ensuring the implementation of robust policies and procedures. The Board 

basis. It sets corporate strategies, approves business plans and annual budgets, establishes corporate objectives, 

performance.

 Moreover, the Board directs and guides management activities towards achieving established goals, ensures 
accountability and conducts Board Meetings in accordance with SEBI Listing Regulations and SS-1 requirements. 
Each agenda item for these meetings is substantiated by relevant information, documents and presentations to 
facilitate informed decision-making. The Board ensures all recommendations from its committees are endorsed and 

B. Managing Director

 The Managing Directors oversees day-to-day operations and ensuring the implementation of its strategic goals. 
Responsibilities includes monitoring the competitive landscape, staying abreast of industry developments and 
standards, identifying expansion opportunities and enhancing Members value. The MD also plays a crucial role in 
articulating and implementing the organization’s vision, mission and overall direction. Acting under the guidance of the 
Board, bridge the gap between the Board and the management team, ensuring policies are adhered to and decisions 

the Company towards excellence while upholding its core values, principles and collaborate closely with the Board to 
devise and execute business strategies aligned with the Company’s overarching goals.
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C. Composition of the Board

 The composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) read with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”).

 As on 31st March, 2024, the Board consists of six Directors comprising of 3 Independent, Non-Executive Directors 
(including one Woman Director), 1 Promoter, Non-Executive Director, 1 Promoter, Executive Director and 1 Executive 
Director.

D. Attendance at Board Meetings

 During the year under review, the Board met 5 times i.e. on 25th May, 2023, 10th August, 2023, 9th November, 2023, 14th 
February, 2024 and 26th February, 2024.

 The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at the Board Meetings held during the 

are given herein below, other Directorships do not include directorships in Private Limited Companies, Section 8 
Companies and Companies incorporated outside India.

Committee.
Sr. 
No.

Name of the Directors Category Number of Board 
Meetings during 
the year 2023-24

Number of 
Director 
ships in 

other Public 
Companies

Membership / 
Chairmanship of 

Committees in other 
Listed Public Companies

Directorship in 
Listed Companies

Attended Annual 
General Meeting 

held on 27th 
September, 2023

Held Attended Chairman Membership
1. Mr. Subhash Ghai EC 5 4 6 Nil Nil CHL Limited -

Independent Director
Yes

2. Mr. Rahul Puri MD 5 5 3 Nil Nil Nil Yes
3. Mr. Parvez Farooqui NED 5 5 3 Nil Nil Nil Yes
4. ID 5 5 7 Nil 3 Borosil Limited -

Independent Director

Limited -
Independent Director
Heubach Colorants 

India Limited - 
Independent Director

Yes

5. ID 5 5 4 Nil 2 RAP Media Limited - 
Independent Director

No

6. *Ms. Paulomi Dhawan ID 5 5 5 Nil 2 Pokarna Limited - 
Independent Director
D.B. Corp Limited - 

Independent Director

Yes

st April, 2024.

 EC: Executive Chairman, MD: Managing Director, NED: Non-Executive Director, ID: Independent Director

E. Inter-se relationship among Directors

 Mr. Rahul Puri is son-in-law of Mr. Subhash Ghai. Apart from this, there are no inter-se relationship among the Directo

F. Number of shares and convertible instruments held by Non-Executive Directors
Sr. No. Name of the Non-Executive Director No. of shares held

1. Mr. Parvez Farooqui 77,300

 None of the other Non-Executive Directors hold any share in the Company. Further, the Company has not issued any 
convertible instrument.
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G. Independent Directors

 The Independent Directors on the Board of the Company, upon appointment are given formal appointment letter inter-
alia containing the terms of appointment, role, duties, responsibilities, time commitment, remuneration, insurance, 

Company has received necessary declarations from all the Independent Directors under Section 149(7) of the Act, that 

Listing Regulations. The Independent Directors do not have any material pecuniary relationship or transaction with the 

 The terms and conditions for appointment of Independent Directors and familiarisation programme are disclosed on 
the website of the Company at www.muktaarts.com.

Chart Matrix

Skills / Expertise / Competencies Mr. Subhash 
Ghai

Mr. Parvez 
Farooqui

Mr. Kewal 
Handa

Mr. Kapil 
Bagla

Ms. Paulomi 
Dhawan

Mr. Rahul 
Puri

Leadership Skills
Industry experience
Comprehensive understanding of 

controls and analysis
Experience in providing guidance 
on major risks, compliances and 
various legislations
Governance Experience in 
developing and maintaining high 
governance standards

Detailed reasons for the resignation of an Independent Director who resigns before the expiry of tenure along with 
During the year 

under review, none of the Independent Director resigns before the expiry of the tenure.

Performance Evaluation

identifying possible path for improvements.

rigorous Board review is internally undertaken on an annual basis.

independence criteria as required under the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations.

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

In compliance with Regulation 25(3) of SEBI Listing Regulations and Schedule IV of the Act, a separate meeting of 
Independent Directors was convened on 6th

presence of Non-Independent Directors and Members of the management. The objective of the meeting was to review 
the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, assess the performance of the Chairman of the 

and the Board.

the Board of Directors.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

(A) AUDIT COMMITTEE

 In terms of the requirements of Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Act, the Board has 

Regulations.

Committee. The Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors of the Company are invitees to the Audit Committee Meetings. 
The Audit Committee hold discussions with the Statutory Auditors on the limited review of the quarterly and half yearly 
accounts of the Company and yearly Audit of the Company’s accounts, Auditor’s Report and other related matters. The 
report of the Internal Auditors is also reviewed by the Audit Committee.

 Composition of the Audit Committee is as under:
Sr. No. Name of the Members Category

1. Chairman and Independent, Non-Executive Director
2. Ms. Paulomi Dhawan Member and Independent, Non-Executive Director
3. Member and Independent, Non-Executive Director
4. Mr. Parvez Farooqui Member and Non-Executive Director

 Ms. Paulomi Dhawan has resigned as the chairperson and will continue to be a member of Audit Committee and Mr. 
th August, 2023.

 Meetings and attendance

 During the year under review, the Committee met 4 times i.e. on 25th May, 2023, 10th August, 2023, 9th November, 2023 
and 14th February, 2024.

Sr. No. Name of the Members Meetings Held Meetings Attended
1. 4 4
2. Ms. Paulomi Dhawan 4 4
3. 4 4
4. Mr. Parvez Farooqui 4 4

 Mr. Kapil Bagla, Chairman of the Audit Committee, did not attend the Company’s last Annual General Meeting held on 
27th September, 2023, due to his prior commitments. Further, he had authorized Ms. Paulomi Dhawan to address the 
Members queries on his behalf.

 Brief description of Terms of Reference

 The Audit Committee assists the Board in its responsibility for overseeing the quality and integrity of the accounting, 
auditing and reporting practices of the Company and its compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements. 

auditors and internal audito

 The Committee, inter-alia, performs the following functions:
•

• Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of 

• Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by them.
•

with particular reference to:
a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s 

Report in terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.
b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies & practices and reasons for the same.
c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.
d.
e.
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f. Disclosure of any related party transactions.
g.

•
approval.

•
an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other 

placement and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter.
• Reviewing with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of the internal 

control systems.
• Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal 

audit.
•
•

fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the 
Board.

• Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as 
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

• To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment of dividend to Members and payment to credito
• To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case, the same is existing.
• Carrying out any other function as is assigned to the Audit Committee.
• Such other powers and duties as may be required to be included in terms of SEBI Listing Regulations as amended 

from time to time and as referred to the Audit Committee by the Board of Directors of the Company.

(B) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

 In terms of the requirements of Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Act, the Board has 
constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”).

 The Composition of NRC is as under:
Sr. No. Name of the Members Category

1. Chairman and Independent, Non-Executive Director
2. Ms. Paulomi Dhawan Member and Independent, Non-Executive Director
3. Member and Independent, Non-Executive Director

th May, 2023, 10th August, 2023 and 6th 
March, 2024.
Sr. No. Name of the Members Meetings held Meetings Attended

1. 3 3
2. Ms. Paulomi Dhawan 3 3
3. 3 3

th September, 
2023, to answer the Members queries.

 Brief description of Terms of Reference:

 
in accordance with the criteria laid down.

 Recommend to the Board their appointment, removal and shall carry out evaluation of every Director’s 
performance.

 

 Carrying out any other function as is assigned to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
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 Such other powers and duties as may be required to be included in terms of SEBI Listing Regulations as amended 
from time to time and as referred to the Committee by the Board of Directors of the Company.

 Nomination and Remuneration Policy

 The Nomination and Remuneration Policy has been formulated by the NRC in compliance with Section 178 of the Act, 
and Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations and has been approved by the Board of Directors.

 The Nomination and Remuneration policy is available on the website of the Company at www.muktaarts.com.

 Criteria for performance evaluation of Directors

 Performance evaluation of each Director was carried out based on the criteria as laid down by the NRC.

 A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Chairman of the 
Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution, independence of judgment, 
promotion of participation by all Directors and developing consensus amongst the Directors for all decisions.

 Remuneration paid to Directors

motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully. During the period, there were no pecuniary 
relationship or transaction between the Company and any of its Non-Executive Directo The Company has not granted 

below:
Particulars Mr. Subhash Ghai

Chairman, Executive Director
Mr. Rahul Puri
Managing Director

Salary 82,50,000 62,32,446
Perquisites 3,37,400 47,400
Total 85,87,400 62,79,846
Service Contract 5 years 5 years
Notice period 3 months 3 months

 During the year 2023-24, the Company has paid sitting fees to the Directors as under:
Name of the Directors Sitting fees  

(`)
Salary & Perquisites 

(`)
Commission  

(`)
Total

(`)
75,000 Nil Nil 75,000

Ms. Paulomi Dhawan 75,000 Nil Nil 75,000
75,000 Nil Nil 75,000

Mr. Parvez Farooqui 75,000 Nil Nil 75,000
TOTAL 3,00,000

(C) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

 In terms of the requirements of Regulation 20 of SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Act, the Board 
has constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee (“SRC”), composition and terms of reference of which are in 
conformity with the said provisions.

 The Composition of SRC is as under:
Sr. No. Name of the Members Category

1. Ms. Paulomi Dhawan Chairperson and Independent, Non-Executive Director
2. Mr. Parvez Farooqui Member and Non-Executive Director
3. Member and Independent, Non-Executive Director

 Ms. Paulomi Dhawan, Chairperson of SRC attended the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on  
27th September, 2023, to answer the Members queries.
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 SRC met once during the year 2023-24 i.e on 25th May, 2023.
Sr. No. Name of the Members Meeting held Meeting Attended

1. Ms. Paulomi Dhawan 1 1
2. Mr. Parvez Farooqui 1 1
3. 1 1

 Brief description of Terms of Reference:

 The Committee is entrusted with the responsibility to resolve the grievances of security holde The Committee monitors 
and reviews the performance and service standards of the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company and provides 
continuous guidance to improve the service levels for investo The broad terms of reference of the Committee are as 
under:

• To delegate authority to Senior Executives for approval of transfer, transmission and transposition of securities 
issued by the Company.

• To deal with Investors complaints.

• To maintain, develop and improve relations with the investors.

• To appoint representatives to attend the General Meeting of other Companies in which the Company is holding 
shares.

• Carrying out any other functions as is assigned to the Committee.

• Such other powers and duties as may be required to be included in terms of SEBI Listing Regulations as amended 
from time to time and as referred to the Committee by the Board of Directors of the Company.

 Details of investor complaints received and redressed during the year 2023-24 are as follows:
Pending at the beginning 

of the year
Received during the year Resolved during

the year
Pending at the end of the 

year
Nil Nil Nil Nil

Resolution Portal (“ODR Portal”) for resolution of disputes arising in the Indian Securities Market. Pursuant to above-

existing SCORES platform, the investors can also initiate dispute resolution through the ODR platform at 
.

st March, 2024.

 

 

(E) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

 In terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act, the Board has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) 
Committee. The Composition and terms of reference of the committee are in conformity with the said provisions.

 The Composition of CSR Committee is as under:

Sr. No. Name of the Members Category
1. Chairman and Independent, Non-Executive Director
2. Mr. Rahul Puri Member and Manging Director
3. Mr. Parvez Farooqui Member and Non-Executive Director

 Meetings and attendance

 CSR Committee met twice during the year 2023-24 on 10th August, 2023 and 14th February, 2024.

Sr. No. Name of the Members Meetings held Meetings attended
1. 2 2
2. Mr. Rahul Puri 2 2
3. Mr. Parvez Farooqui 2 2
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 Brief description of Terms of Reference:

• To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy which will indicate the activities to be undertaken by the 
Company in accordance with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

• To review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities to be undertaken by the 
Company.

• To monitor the CSR policy of the Company from time to time.

• Any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem appropriate after approval of the Board of Directors or as may 
be directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

• Such other powers and duties as may be required to be included pursuant to the provisions of the Act and rules 
made thereunder as amended from time to time and as referred to the Committee by the Board of Directors of the 
Company.

(F) SENIOR MANAGEMENT

16(1)(d) and Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations. Details of Senior Management as on 31st March, 2024, are 
as follows:

Sr. No. Name Designation
1. Mr. Siraj Farooqui
2. Mr. Sanjay Ghai
3. Mr. Prabuddha Dasgupta
4. Ms. Hemal N. Pankhania

General Body Meetings

(a) Details of General Meetings and Special Resolutions passed:

 Annual General Meetings (“AGM”) held during the last 3 years and the Special Resolutions passed therein:
Financial Year 
ended

Date Time Venue Details of 
Special 

Resolutions
31st March, 2023 27th September, 2023 4:00 p.m.

Visual Means.
Deemed Venue: Whistling Woods Institute 
Auditorium, Dada Saheb Phalke Chitra Nagari, 
Goregaon (East), Mumbai – 400 065.

Nil

31st March, 2022 27th September, 2022 4:00 p.m.
Visual Means.
Deemed Venue: Whistling Woods Institute 
Auditorium, Dada Saheb Phalke Chitra Nagari, 
Goregaon (East), Mumbai – 400 065.

Nil

31st March, 2021 23rd September, 2021 3:00 p.m.
Visual Means.
Deemed Venue: Whistling Woods Institute 
Auditorium, Dada Saheb Phalke Chitra Nagari, 
Goregaon (East), Mumbai – 400 065.

Nil

(b) Extra Ordinary General Meeting

(c) Postal Ballot and Procedure

 During the year, the Company has passed Special Resolutions through Postal Ballots. The Company has provided 
electronic voting facility to all its Members in compliance with Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing Regulations and as per 
the provisions of Sections 108 and 110 of the Act, read with Rule 20 and Rule 22 of the Companies (Management and 

 The Company has engaged the services of National Securities Depository Limited for facilitating e-voting to enable 
the Members to cast their votes electronically. The Board of Directors has appointed 
Practicing Company Secretaries (FCS: 7141 and COP: 7512) and 
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Secretaries (FCS: 7141 and COP: 7512), as the Scrutinizers, for conducting the Postal Ballot process, in a fair and 
transparent manner.

 The Company also published notice in the newspapers declaring the details of completion of dispatch, e-voting details 
and other requirements in terms of the Act read with the Rules issued thereunder and the SS issued by the ICSI. Voting 
rights were reckoned on the paid-up value of shares of the Company registered in the names of the Members as on the 

 The Scrutinizer submitted his report to the Company Secretary of the Company, after the completion of scrutiny and 
the consolidated results of the voting by postal ballot were then announced by the Company Secretary as authorised 
by the Board of the Company.

 The results are available on the Company’s website and also on the website of the Stock Exchanges and NSDL.

Description Type of 
resolution

Votes
Favour % Against %

Re-appointment of Mr. Subhash Ghai 
(DIN:00019803) as Chairman, Executive 
Director of the Company

Special Resolution 165442 98.8221 1972 1.1779

Re-appointment of Mr. Rahul Puri 
(DIN:01925045) as Managing Director of the 
Company

Special Resolution 202442 99.0353 1972 0.9647

Disposal of the Company’s Investment in 
Material Subsidiary

Special Resolution 266002 90.7058 27256 9.2942

Details of Special Resolution(s) proposed to be transacted through postal ballot

None of the business is proposed to be transacted at the ensuing AGM which requires passing of a Special Resolution 
through postal ballot.

Disclosure of Agreements binding the Company

Company, Mukta A2 Cinemas Private Limited (Formerly Mukta A2 Cinemas Limited), Maverick Media Private Limited, being 
investor in Mukta A2 and Mr. Rajiv Rameshchandra Malhotra, being promoter of Mukta A2, have entered into a binding Term 
Sheet on 28th February, 2024 and Shareholders and Securities Subscription Agreement on 7th August, 2024. The Company 
has furnished comprehensive details regarding this transaction through a Postal Ballot Notice dated 26th February 2024.

Means of Communication

a) Quarterly/Half-yearly and Yearly Financial Results

in the newspapers, posted on the website of the Company at www.muktaarts.com and also submitted to the Stock 
Exchanges.

 The results are generally published in Financial Express (All India Edition-English Newspaper) and Mumbai Lakshadeep 
(Marathi Newspaper) which are national and local dailies respectively. These results are also posted on the Company’s 
website at www.muktaarts.com.

b) Company’s Website

website at www.muktaarts.com.

 Your Company from time to time and as may be required, communicates with its Members through multiple channels of 
communications such as dissemination of information on the website of the stock exchanges, press releases, Annual 
Reports and uploading relevant information on its websites. Your Company discloses to the stock exchanges, all the 
information required to be disclosed as per SEBI Listing Regulations.

d) Communication to the Members

vide its circular dated November 03, 2021 
.
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General Members Information

Annual General Meeting

Day and Date : Friday, 27th September, 2024
Time : 04:30 p.m.
Venue : Deemed to be Whistling Woods Institute, Dada Saheb Phalke Chitra Nagari, Goregaon (E), 

Mumbai-400 065

Financial Year
st day of April 

of a year and ending on 31st day of March of the following year.

Financial Calendar (tentative) results:
1st Quarter : Within 45 days from the end of the quarter
2nd Quarter : Within 45 days from the end of the quarter
3rd Quarter : Within 45 days from the end of the quarter
4th Quarter :

Listing : National Stock Exchange of India Limited
 

Bandra (E), Mumbai- 400051
BSE Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001

Corporate Identity Number : L92110MH1982PLC028180
ISIN NO. : INE374B01019
BSE Scrip Code : 532357
NSE Symbol :

*The Calcutta Stock Exchange 

* st March, 

SEBI in this regard. Response from SEBI as well as CSE is still awaited.

Company’s shares are listed except CSE.

Limited (“NSDL”) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”).

Market Price Data – High and Low during each month during the Financial Year 2023-24:
Months BSE NSE

High Low High Low
April 2023 56.15 44.80 56.45 45.35
May 2023 58.99 48.75 58.80 48.35
June 2023 53.00 48.77 53.35 48.55
July 2023 55.00 49.00 54.70 48.60
August 2023 62.60 49.55 62.40 49.35
September 2023 68.40 58.00 68.70 57.85
October 2023 90.39 61.96 90.45 62.00
November 2023 83.00 68.61 84.00 69.55
December 2023 81.00 74.00 83.45 74.05
January 2024 98.35 76.47 99.05 76.60
February 2024 91.98 80.01 91.85 78.20
March 2024 90.63 71.75 90.15 72.00
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Performance of Company’s share in comparison to broad-based indices - S&P BSE Sensex and Nifty 50 are given 
below:
Months Company’s closing

price at BSE
S&P BSE Sensex 

closing
Company’s closing

price at NSE
Nifty 50 closing

April 2023 53.26 61,112.44 53.00 18065.00
May 2023 50.57 62,622.24 51.00 18534.40
June 2023 49.48 64,718.56 49.55 19189.05
July 2023 52.85 66,527.67 53.05 19753.80
August 2023 60.11 64,831.41 59.45 19253.80
September 2023 64.25 65,828.41 64.40 19638.30
October 2023 71.84 63,874.93 71.15 19079.60
November 2023 78.01 66,988.44 78.50 20133.15
December 2023 76.71 72,240.26 76.85 21731.40
January 2024 83.72 71,752.11 79.40 21725.70
February 2024 81.24 72,500.30 81.20 21982.80
March 2024 73.56 73,651.35 74.40 22326.90

Name and Address of the Registrar and Transfer Agent

Name: Link Intime India Private Limited
Address: C-101, Embassy 247,
L.B.S Marg, Vikhroli (W),
Mumbai – 400083.
Tel. No.: 810 811 6767
Fax: 022-4918 6060
E-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Share Transfer System

As per the SEBI Listing Regulations, shares cannot be transferred unless they are held in dematerialized mode. Members 
who hold shares in physical form are advised to convert them into dematerialized mode to avoid the risk of losing shares, 
fraudulent transactions and to receive better investor servicing. Only valid transmission or transposition cases that comply 
with the SEBI guidelines will be processed by the RTA of the Company. To transfer, transmit or transpose shares in physical 

technically found to be complete and in order.

prescribed by SEBI.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2024
Distribution Schedule as on 31st March, 2024

Sr. 
No.

Shareholding of 
Shares

No. of Members % of Shares held Shares held % of Shares held

1. 1 - 500 6421 87.9589 675095 2.9891
2. 501 - 1000 409 5.6027 333205 1.4753
3. 1001 - 2000 180 2.4658 280480 1.2419
4. 2001 - 3000 77 1.0548 200000 0.8855
5. 3001 - 4000 32 0.4384 116481 0.5157
6. 4001 - 5000 36 0.4932 170545 0.7551
7. 5001 - 10000 61 0.8356 457003 2.0235
8. 10001 and above 84 1.1507 20352391 90.1138

Total 7300 100 22585200 100

Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

The Company’s equity shares are traded in dematerialized form on both NSE and BSE. As of 31st March, 2024, 99.96% 
paid-up equity share capital of the Company are in dematerialized mode. The shares are assigned, International Securities 

available are National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited.
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Sr. No. Name of the Depository No. of Shares % of total issued capital
1. NSDL 20421989 90.42
2. CDSL 2153510 9.54
3. Physical 9701 0.04

TOTAL 22585200 100

Disclosure on commodity price risk and hedging activities

Your Company actively monitors the foreign exchange movements and takes appropriate measures to reduce the risk 
associated with transactions in foreign currencies, if any.

Company’s Branches/Locations

Mukta House, Behind Whistling Woods Institute, 
Filmcity Complex, Goregaon (East), Mumbai- 400 065. 
Tel. No.: (022) 3364 9400 
Fax No.: (022) 3364 9401 
Email ID: investorrelations@muktaarts.com 
Website: www.muktaarts.com

Premises Owned by the Company

Flat Nos. 2 & 3, Bait-Ush-Sharaf, 
29th Road, Bandra (W), Mumbai-400 050

 

Flat Nos.302 & 402, Crest Park View, 28th Road, 
TPS- III, Bandra (W), Mumbai-400 050

Other premises occupied

Mukta House, Filmcity Complex, 
Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 065

 
Lamington Road, 
Mumbai-400 004

607, Anushka Tower, Garg Tade Centre, 
Near G3s Multiplex, Sector - 11, 
Rohini, Delhi-110 085

Bhagirath Palace, 
3rd Floor, Main Road, 
Chandni Chowk, 
Delhi-110 006.

Dhupar Building, 1st Floor, 
Near Standard Hotel, Railway Road, 
Jalandar City-144 001

Address for Correspondence

Name
Address

Tel. No.
Fax No.
Email

Company Registrar and Transfer Agent
Mukta Arts Limited
Mukta House, Behind Whistling Woods 
Institute, Filmcity Complex, Goregaon (E), Mumbai 
- 400 065.
(022) 3364 9400
(022) 3364 9401
investorrelations@muktaarts.com

Link Intime India Private Limited
C-101, Embassy 247, L.B.S Marg, Vikhroli (W), 
Mumbai - 400 083.

(022) 4918 6000
(022) 4918 6060
rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
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Credit Rating

Other Disclosures

The policy for Related Party Transactions can be accessed on Company’s website.
Disclosure on instance of non-compliance
There have been no instance of non-compliance on any matter with the rules and regulations prescribed by the Stock 
Exchanges, SEBI or any other statutory authority relating to the capital market during the last three year.

by the Board of the Company.
Disclosure on Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct and is displayed on 
Company’s website. The Company takes cognizance of complaints made and suggestions given by the employees and othe 
No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company. No Complains 
have been received by the Company during the year under review.
Compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of non-mandatory requirements

also non-mandatory requirements to the extent as per Part E of Schedule II of SEBI Listing Regulations.
Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries

Regulations. The policy is available on the Company’s website.

Non-suspension of the securities of the Company
The securities of the Company were not suspended from trading at any time during the year.

Annexure-II to this report.
Recommendations of the Committees

recommendation of any Committee of the Board.
Details of consolidated fees paid to Statutory Auditors

111184W) Statutory Auditors of the Company are given below:
Particulars Amount (In `)
Statutory Audit Fees 15,00,000
Other services including reimbursement of expenses 38,000
Total 15,38,000

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013

Number of complaints disposed of Number of complaints pending as 

Nil Nil Nil
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31st March, 2024

Sr. 
No.

Entity to whom Loan is Given Relationship with the 
Company

Opening
Balance

Amount of
loan given
during the

year

Amount of
loan repaid
during the

year

Outstanding
loan as at
31st March, 

2024
1. Mukta V N Films Limited Enterprises over which key 

management personnel 
2,00,00,000 0 0 2,00,00,000

2. Mukta A2 Cinemas Private Limited
(Formerly Mukta A2 Cinemas Limited)

Subsidiary 60,00,00,000 3,29,00,000 2,29,00,000 61,00,00,000

3. Mukta A2 Multiplex W.L.L Subsidiary 13,07,36,015 0 0 15,52,93,099
4. Whistling Woods International Limited Subsidiary 18,51,00,000 2,81,00,000 3,20,00,000 18,12,00,000

Disclosure on Material Subsidiaries

In compliance with the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has formulated the Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries. 
The policy is available on the Company’s website.
Name of the Material Subsidiary Details of Incorporation Details of Statutory Auditors

Date Place Name Date of appointment
Whistling Woods International Limited Mumbai

Accountants
Mukta A2 Cinemas Private Limited
(Formerly Mukta A2 Cinemas Limited)

Mumbai
& Associates, Chartered 
Accountants Re-appointment

Mukta A2 Multiplex W.L.L Bahrain Moore Stephens, Public 
Accountants and Consultants

Compliance with Corporate Governance requirements

The Company has complied with the requirements of Corporate Governance set forth in Regulation 17 to 27, as well as 
Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI Listing Regulations.

Subsidiary Companies

unlisted subsidiary companies.

Unclaimed Dividend

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the Act and Investor Education and Protection Fund (Accounting, 
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”)
years from the date of declaration are to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (“IEPF”).

period of 7 (Seven) consecutive years or more to the demat account of IEPF established by the Central Government. The 

In accordance with the said IEPF Rules, as amended, the Company shall send notices to all the Members whose shares 
are due to be transferred to IEPF requesting them to comply with the requirements to claim back the Dividends and avoid 
transfer of shares and shall simultaneously publish newspaper advertisement for the same.

years from the date, the dividend is due for payment to IEPF established by the Government.

The statutory timelines for claiming unclaimed and unpaid dividends declared by the Company is provided hereunder and 
also available on the Company’s website.

respective due dates for claiming it from the Company:

Financial year ended Date of Declaration Last date to claim Due Date for transfer to IEPF
2018-2019 28th August, 2019 3rd October, 2026 2nd November, 2026

Further, in accordance with the provisions contained in Rule 7(2A) of the IEPF Rules, the Company Secretary has been 
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Authority are available on the website of the Company.

Furthermore, shares in respect of which dividend shall remain unclaimed for 7 (Seven) consecutive years, will be reviewed 
for transfer to the IEPF as required by law. The Company will transfer the said shares, after sending an intimation of the 
proposed transfer in advance to the concerned Members, as well as publish a public notice in this regard.

on Company’s website.

Code of Conduct

The Company has laid down code of conduct for all its Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company 
which is posted on the Company’s website. The code of conduct also includes code for Independent Directors which is a 
guide to professional conduct for Independent Directors pursuant to Section 149(8) and Schedule IV of the Act. All the Board 

compliance of the Code of Conduct is enclosed as Annexure-III.

Prevention of Insider Trading

Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information” (hereinafter referred to as “Code”) to Regulate, Monitor and 
Report Trading by Designated Persons, which allows the formulation of a trading plan subject to certain conditions and 
requires preclearance for dealing in Company’s shares, it also prohibits dealings in the Company’s shares by Directors, 
Designated Persons, Connected Persons and their immediate relatives, while in possession of unpublished price sensitive 
information in relation to the Company and during the period(s) when the Trading Window to deal in the Company’s share is 
closed. The Code is being revised in line with the amendments to the SEBI PIT Regulations from time to time.

of the SEBI PIT Regulations. A structured digital database of all the Designated Persons is being digitally maintained by the 
Company. The Company Secretary ensures the implementation of the Code for fair disclosure and conduct.

Code is available on the website of the Company at www.muktaarts.com.

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit is being carried out every quarter by Practicing Company Secretary and the Reports 

Stock Exchange within the stipulated time. The audit, inter alia
is in agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares in dematerialized form held with NSDL and CDSL and the 
total number of shares in physical form.

Pursuant to the provisions outlined in Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Managing Director and Chief 

Annexure-IV to this 
report.

Green initiative

As a responsible corporate entity, the Company wholeheartedly endorses and supports the ‘Green Initiative’ launched by 

the Annual Report and other such documents to Members’ registered e-mail addresses with their DPs or with the Company 
or its RTA.

We urge Members who have not yet registered their e-mail addresses to do so without delay. Members who hold shares in 
Demat form can register their e-mail address with their respective DPs. For Members who hold shares in physical form, are 
request that they register their e-mail addresses with the RTA.

By Order of the Board of Directors 
Mukta Arts Limited

Sd/- 
Subhash Ghai 

Date: Chairman, Executive Director 
Place: Mumbai  DIN: 00019803



55

Annexure-I

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS UNDER SEBI 
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

To, 
The Members 
Mukta Arts Limited 
Mukta House, Behind Whistling Woods Institute, 
Filmcity Complex, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 065.

We have examined all relevant records of Mukta Arts Limited (‘the Company’) for the purpose of certifying compliance 

under Regulations 17 to 27, Clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of 
Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(‘LODR’), for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024. We have obtained all the information and explanations to the best 

We state that the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management and our 
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of 
the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements 
of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company 

For KDA & Associates 
(Formerly known as KDT & Associates) 

Practicing Company Secretaries

Sd/- 
Nikunj Makwana 

Partner 
   Membership No: ACS 62943 

COP No: 23501 
Date:   PR No.: 5840/2024 
Place: Mumbai  UDIN: A062943F000976493
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Annexure-II

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
 

To, 
The Members 
Mukta Arts Limited 
Mukta House, Behind Whistling Woods Institute, 
Filmcity Complex, Goregaon (E), Mumbai – 400 065.

ARTS LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”)
Mukta House, Behind Whistling Woods Institute, Filmcity Complex, Goregaon (E), Mumbai - 400065, produced before us 

of Para-C of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company 

Year ending on 31st

Authorities.

Sr. No. Name of the Directors DIN Date of appointment
1. Mr. Subhash Ghai 00019803
2. 00056826
3. Ms. Paulomi Dhawan 01574580
4. Mr. Rahul Puri 01925045
5. Mr. Parvez Farooqui 00019853
6. 00387814

For KDA & Associates 
(Formerly known as KDT & Associates) 

Practicing Company Secretaries

Sd/- 
Nikunj Makwana 

Partner 
Membership No.: ACS 62943 

Date:   COP No.: 23501 
Place: Mumbai  PR No.:5840/2024 

UDIN: A062943F000976781
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Annexure-III 

DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT

I, Rahul Puri, Managing Director of Mukta Arts Limited hereby declare that all the Members of the Board of Directors and 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
Mukta Arts Limited

Sd/- 
Rahul Puri 

Managing Director 
DIN: 01925045

Date:  
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure-IV 

MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION
 

st March, 2024]

We, the undersigned, certify that:
st March, 2024 

and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading.

existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

which are fraudulent, illegal or violate Company’s code of conduct.

D. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee that:

By Order of the Board of Directors 
Mukta Arts Limited

 Sd/-  Sd/- 
 Rahul Puri  Prabuddha Dasgupta 
 Managing Director   
 DIN: 01925045 

Date:  
Place: Mumbai
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members   
Mukta Arts Limited
Report on audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Mukta Arts Limited (“the Company”), which 

31, 2024, its 
that date.

its assessment of the merits of the case, plans for the future and support provided by its holding company.

Key Audit Matters

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Annexure A

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Annexure B, and

.

.

.

For Uttam Abuwala Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 111184W

Sd/- 
CA. Subhash Jhunjhunwala
Partner
Membership No. 016331
UDIN: 24016331BKBHEG3893

Date: 
Place:
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Annexure A referred to in Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements Paragraph of Independent Auditor’s 
report of even date to the members of Mukta Arts Limited on the accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024

ii)  a) 

Sr 
No

Name of the Parties Amount (Rs.) Sr 
No

Name of the Parties Amount (Rs.)
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Name of the statute Nature of 
dues

Amount
(Rs.)

 Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where the dispute is 
pending
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For Uttam Abuwala Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 111184W

Sd/-
CA. Subhash Jhunjhunwala
Partner
Membership No. 016331
UDIN: 24016331BKBHEG3893

Date: 
Place:

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of Mukta 
Arts Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013

Mukta Arts Limited

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

For Uttam Abuwala Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 111184W

Sd/-
CA. Subhash Jhunjhunwala
Partner
Membership No. 016331
UDIN: 24016331BKBHEG3893

Date: 
Place:
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Uttam Abuwala Ghosh & Associates 
 

 
Mukta Arts Limited 

Sd/-
CA Subhash Jhunjhunwala 

Sd/-
Subhash Ghai 

Sd/- 
Rahul Puri 

Sd/- 
Parvez A. Farooqui

Date:
Place: 

Sd/-
Prabuddha Dasgupta 

Sd/- 
Hemal Pankhania 

Company Secretary

Standalone Balance Sheet As At 31 March, 2024
(` in ‘000)

 Particulars  Note No. As at
31 March 2024

I.  ASSETS
 Non-current assets

 111,244
 4,859
 1,287

 126,569
 -

 29,332

 330,887
 353,006
 421,335

 24,033
 95,300

 Total Non-current assets  1,497,852
 Current assets

 220,833
 3,372

 62,731
 824,428

 64,080
 34,602

 Total Current assets  1,210,046
 Total Assets  2,707,898

 II.  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
 Equity

 112,926
 1,771,231

 Total Equity  1,884,157
 Liabilities
 Non-current liabilities

 530,957
 14,305
 27,234
 12,071

 2,571
 Total Non-Current Liabilities  587,138
 Current liabilities

 67,238
 7,083

 38,520
 21,346

 4,210
 98,206

 Total Current liabilities  236,603
 Total Equity and Liabilities  2,707,898
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Uttam Abuwala Ghosh & Associates 
 

 
Mukta Arts Limited 

Sd/-
CA Subhash Jhunjhunwala 

Sd/-
Subhash Ghai 

Sd/- 
Rahul Puri 

Sd/- 
Parvez A. Farooqui

Date:
Place: 

Sd/-
Prabuddha Dasgupta 

Sd/- 
Hemal Pankhania 

Company Secretary

(` in ‘000)
 Particulars  Note No. Year ended

31 March 2024
 275,160
 160,010

(III) Total Income (I+II)  435,170

(IV) Expenses
 116,293
 54,802
 60,536
 23,988
 66,212

 Total Expenses  321,832

(V)  113,338

 Tax expense
 11,100
 (2,129)

 1,025

(VI)  103,342

(VII) Other comprehensive income

 1,250

 Other comprehensive income for the year  1,250

(VIII) Total comprehensive income for the year (IX+X)  104,592

(IX) Earnings per share
`  4.58

`  4.58
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Statement of Changes in Equity as at 31 March, 2024
(` in ‘000)

Number Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2022  22,585,200  112,926

Balance as at 31 March 2023  22,585,200  112,926

Balance as at 31 March 2024  22,585,200  112,926

Securities 
Premium

General 
Reserve

Capital 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Total other 
equity

Balance as at 1 April 2022  973,605  83,145  12  525,545  1,582,306
 84,208

 -
 -

 131
Total Comprehensive income for the year  -  -  -  84,339  84,339

 -
 -

Balance as at 31 March 2023  973,605  83,145  12  609,884  1,666,646
 103,342

 (7)
 -

 1,250
Total Comprehensive income for the year  -  -  -  104,585  104,585

account
 -

 -

Balance as at 31 March 2024  973,605  83,145  12  714,469  1,771,231

Uttam Abuwala Ghosh & Associates 
 

 
Mukta Arts Limited 

Sd/-
CA Subhash Jhunjhunwala 

Sd/-
Subhash Ghai 

Sd/- 
Rahul Puri 

Sd/- 
Parvez A. Farooqui

Date:
Place: 

Sd/-
Prabuddha Dasgupta 

Sd/- 
Hemal Pankhania 

Company Secretary
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Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2024
(` in ‘000)

Particluars For the year ended
31 March 2024

 113,338

 23,988
 1,615

 60,536
 (111,947)

 (680)
 86,851

 (30,956)
 4,630

 (43,843)
 (4,178)

 (17,742)
 317

 15,212
 (12,820)

 (755)
 (61,243)

 3,900
 10,974

 (23,599)
 4,138
 2,451

 (28,604)
Cash generated from (used in) operations  (95,267)

 (16,351)
Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities (A)  (111,618)

 (6,183)
 (9,500)

 (13,779)
 3,604

 692
 5,909

 111,947
Net cash used in investing activities (B)  92,690

 (1,263)
 19,238

 (60,536)
 (42,560)

Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)  (61,489)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  67,739
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  3,150
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(` in ‘000)
Particluars For the year ended

31 March 2024

statement
Notes:

 87

 3,063
 3,150

Uttam Abuwala Ghosh & Associates 
 

 
Mukta Arts Limited 

Sd/-
CA Subhash Jhunjhunwala 

Sd/-
Subhash Ghai 

Sd/- 
Rahul Puri 

Sd/- 
Parvez A. Farooqui

Date:
Place: 

Sd/-
Prabuddha Dasgupta 

Sd/- 
Hemal Pankhania 

Company Secretary
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

Corporate information

Basis of preparation
(i)  Compliance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)

(ii)  Historical Cost Convention

Segment Reporting

Foreign Currency Transactions

Revenue Recognition

 Film/content production and related income
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)

 Income from distribution and exhibition

 Revenue from equipment hire/ facility rental

 Revenue from business support service

 Dividend & Interest income
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)

Borrowing Costs

Leases
 Assets taken on operating lease

 Assets given on operating lease

Taxation

 Current tax

 Minimum Alternative Tax Credit entitlement

 Deferred tax

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

 Transition to Ind AS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)

Asset class Useful life

Investment properties

Intangible assets
 Film rights comprising negative rights and distribution rights

Impairment of Non Financial Asset
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)

Inventory

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial Instruments

 Financial Asset

•  

•  

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Subsequent measurement

•  

•  

•  

 Financial Assets measured at amortised cost

 Financial Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)

 

 Equity investments

 Derecognition of Financial Assets

 

 Trade receivables

Ageing Expected Credit loss(%)

 Financial Liabilities
(i)  Initial recognition and measurement

(ii)  Subsequent measurement
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)

 

 Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost:

 Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

 

Measurement of fair values
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)

Provisions

Contingent Liabilities

Earnings per share (‘EPS’)

Critical estimates and judgements

 

 Estimation of useful life:



79

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)

6(a) - Property, plant and equipment  (`

Ownership 
Premises

Leasehold 
Premises

Plant & 
Machinery

Motor 
Vehicles

Fixtures & 
Fittings

Computers Total

Cost or deemed cost 
(Gross Carrying Amount)

 569,480
 9,591
 1,572

 106,072  127,767  199,181  94,758  35,185  14,534  577,498

 106,072  127,767  199,243  109,879  35,282  14,854  593,098
Accumulated 
Depreciation/Amortisation

 446,273
 16,087

 -
 -

 59,416  86,981  189,005  80,195  32,896  13,866  462,359
 462,359

 19,700
 184
 (22)

 63,188  93,301  189,601  88,343  33,304  14,116  481,854
Carrying amounts (Net)
At 1 April 2022
At 31 March 2023
At 31 March 2024  42,884  34,466  9,642  21,536  1,978  738  111,244

6(b) Right-of-use assets

Amount  
(in '000)

Amount 
(in '000)

Net (in 
'000)

Cost or deemed cost (Gross Carrying 
Amount)

Accumulated Depreciation/
Amortisation

 7,601

 11,713  5,481  6,232

 11,713  6,854  4,859
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)

6(c) Capital Work in Progress (`

Amount
(Rs. in '000)

 1,287

 1,287

6(d) - Intangible Assets (`

Distribution 
Rights

Negative Rights Exhibition 
Rights

Total

Cost or deemed cost
 1,052,229

 -
 -
 -

 240,000  809,728  2,500  1,052,229
 1,052,229

 -
 -
 -

 240,000  809,728  2,500  1,052,229
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses

 1,052,229
 -
 -
 -

 240,000  809,728  2,500  1,052,229
 1,052,229

 -
 -
 -

 240,000  809,728  2,500  1,052,229
Carrying amount (Net)
At 1 April 2021  -
At 31 March 2022  -
At 31 March 2023  -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)

6(e) Intangible assets under development (`
Amount  

(Rs. in '000)
 17,489

 37,034
 37,034

 29,332

7  Investment property  (`
Particular Building Land Total

 189,357
 -
 -
 -

 122,968  66,389  189,357
 189,357

 -
 -
 -

 122,968  66,389  189,357
Accumulated Depreciation/Amortisation

 56,761
 3,112

 -
 -

 59,873  -  59,873
 59,873

 2,915
 -
 -

 62,788  -  62,788
Carrying amounts (Net)
At 1 April 2022  132,596
At 31 March 2023  129,484
At 31 March 2024  126,569
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

(i)  Information regarding Income and expenditure of Investment properties
As at

31 March 2024
 53,354

 3,785
 49,569

 2,915
 46,654

(ii)  Fair Value
Particulars Valuation Techniques

(See note below)
Fair Value Hierarchy

(See note below)
As at

31 March 2024

rate
 1,301,375

 Estimation of fair value

 

8  Non Current Financial Asset

8(a) Investments
As at

31 March 2024
A Non current investments

Unquoted equity shares
i) Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries at FVTPL

Connect 1 Limited
 600

Whistling Woods International Limited
 169,997

Mukta Tele Media Limited
 500

Mukta Creative Ventures Limited
 9,900

Mukta A2 Multiplex WLL
 59,692

Mukta A2 Cinemas Limited
 10,500

Deemed Investment in Subsidiary
 1,320

 28,194
 2,498
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

As at
31 March 2024

ii) Investment in equity shares of joint venture at FVTPL
Mukta VN Films Limited

 33,000

Deemed Investment in Joint Venture
 5,185

Total (i+ii)  321,386
iii) Investment in equity instruments-others at FVTPL (un-quoted)

 1

 1

Total (iii)  1
iv) 9500

Total (i+ii+iii)  330,887

8(b) Loans
As at

31 March 2024
Unsecured

 181,200
ii)  Investment in preference shares of subsidiary (un-quoted )

 171,806

Total 353,006

As at
31 March 2024

 5,167
 133,673
 282,495

Total
421,335

9 Deferred tax assets (net)
As at

31 March 2024
Deferred tax liability on

Total

Deferred tax asset on
 4,233

 440
 13,947

 5,414
Total  24,033

Deferred tax assets (net)  24,033
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

Movement in deferred tax assets

At April 1, 2023

At March 31, 2024

At March 31, 2024  4,233  440  13,947  5,414  24,033

10 Other non- current assets10 Other non- current assets
As at

31 March 2024
 94,884

 416
Total  95,300

11 Current Financial Assets

11(a) Trade receivables
As at

31 March 2024
 72,060

 -
 150,464
 (1,691)

Total trade receivables  220,833
Current portion  220,833

 -
Total  220,833
Break-up of security details

 222,524
 -

 222,524
 (1,691)

Total trade receivables  220,833
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

As on 31st March 2024
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled Less than 
6 months

6 months-1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

Gross trade receivables

Net trade receivables

As on 31st March 2023
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled Less than 
6 months

6 months-1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

Gross trade receivables

Net trade receivables

11 Current Financial Assets
11(b)Cash and cash equivalents

As at
31 March 2024

 87

 3,063
 223

Total  3,372

11(c)Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents
As at

31 March 2024
 1,195

 61,537

Total  62,731
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

11(d)Loans
As at

31 March 2024
 747

 785,293
 38,389

Total  824,428

As at
31 March 2024

 18,277
 40,413

 1,513
 3,876

Total  64,080

12 Other current assets
As at

31 March 2024
 17,067

 5,440
 6,216
 5,880

Total  34,602

13 Equity share capital
As at 31 March 2024

Number Amount
Authorised share capital

24,000,000 120,000
24,000,000 120,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid- up
22,585,200 112,926

Total 22,585,200 112,926

 Terms and rights attached to equity shares
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

 Reconciliation of paid- up share capital (Equity Shares)
As at 31 March 2024

Number Amount
22,585,200 112,926

 -  -
 -  -

Balance at the end of the year 22,585,200 112,926

Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company
As at 31 March 2024

Number % holding
in the class

12,497,990 55.34%
1,650,000 7.31%
1,650,000 7.31%

14  Other Equity
As at

31 March 2024
Securities premium

 973,605
 -

 973,605

General reserve
 83,145

 -
 83,145

Capital reserve
 12

 -
 12

Retained earnings
 609,884
 103,342

 (7)
 -

 1,250
 714,469

Total 1,771,231

 Nature and purpose of other reserves
 Securities premium reserve :
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

 Capital reserve :

 Shares held by the promoters at the end of the year
Name of the Promoters No. of Shares as 

on March 31, 2024
*% of Total Shares 
on March 31, 2024

 
the year

Total 1,59,69,290 70.71 1,59,60,590 70.67 Nil
 Note:

15 Non Current Financial Liabilities

15(a) Long-term borrowings
As at

31 March 2024
Secured

 501,163
 19,994
 29,684

 (19,884)
Total 530,957

 

Lendor Repayment schedule and other terms

15(b)Lease Liabilities
As at

31 March 2024
 14,305

Total 14,305
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

As at
31 March 2024

 27,234
Total 27,234

As at
31 March 2024

 3,007
 9,064

Total 12,071

17 Other non-current liabilities 
As at

31 March 2024
 2,571

Total  2,571

18 Currrent Financial Liabilities
18(a) Short-term borrowings

As at
31 March 2024

Repayable on demand
Unsecured

 14,038
 53,200

Total  67,238

18(b) Lease Liabilities 
As at

31 March 2024
 7,083

Total  7,083

18(b) Trade payable 
As at

31 March 2024
 37,532

 988
Total  38,520

As at
31 March 2024

 19,884

 196

 1,019
 24

 223
 21,346
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

19   Short Term Provisions
As at

31 March 2023
 -

 2,247
 1,963

Total  4,210

20  Other current liabilities

As at
31 March 2023

 1,309
 94,038

 150
 2

 2,700
 9
 -

Total  98,206

21  Revenue from operations (net)

Year ended
31 March 2024

    185,518
 185,518

(b)   Distribution, Exhibition, Theatrical and Film Production Income
    40
    2,082

 2,122
(c)   Other operating revenue
    81,400
    6,120

 87,520
  Total  275,160

22   Other income

Year ended
31 March 2024

 3,713
 103,979

Other Non Operating Income
 4,254

 680
 928

 46,455
Total other income  160,010
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

23  Cost of production, distribution, exibition and theatrical operation
Year ended

31 March 2024
 111,753

 4,541
Total Distributor and producer’s share  116,293

Year ended
31 March 2024

 49,560
 2,026
 2,971

 245
 54,802

(ii)  Post Employment Obligations:

 Gratuity : 

Particulars
31 March 2024

7.20%
Salary growth rate 8.00%

(A)  Present Value of Obligation as at Balance Sheet date
Particulars

31 March 2024
 14,039

 882
 570

 -
 1,452

Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
 -

 168
 176

Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  344
 (571)

 -
Present Value of Obligation as at the end  15,263
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

(B)  Changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets
Particulars

31 March 2024
 3,996

 194
 194

Re-measurement (or Actuarial) gain / (loss) arising from:
83

Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 83
 534

 (571)
 -

Fair value of plan assets at the end  4,236

(C) Amount recognised in the Balance sheet
Particulars

31 March 2024
 15,263

 4,236
 11,027

(D)  Constitution of Plan Assets
Particulars

31 March 2024
100%

Total of the Plan Assets 100%

(E)  Sensitivity analysis

 
Partculars

As on March 31, 2024 Decrease Increase

Partculars
Gratuity

As on March 31, 2023 Decrease Increase
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

Particulars
31 March 2024

 6,198
 1,520

 414
 845
 331

 16,747

 Compensated absences : 

(G)  Risk exposure

 

 Asset volatility - 

 Changes in bond yields - 

25 Finance costs
Year ended

31 March 2024

Car loan  2,841
 2,410

 611
 50,900

 2,905
 869

Total Finance Cost  60,536

26 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Year ended

31 March 2024
 21,073

 2,915
Total Depreciation and amortisation expense  23,988
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

27 Other expenses 
Year ended

31 March 2024
 13,027

 4,842
 2,768
 1,160
 7,891

 21,230
 471
 102

 1,615
 1,149

 366
 2,791
 1,407

 322
 1,052

 538
 5,482

Total  66,212

27 a - Payment to auditor
Year ended

31 March 2024
 500

 38
Total  538

28 Income Tax
(A)  Income Tax Expense

Income Tax Expense 31 March 2024
Current tax

 11,100
Total Current Tax Expense  11,100
Deferred Tax

 (2,129)
 -

Total Deferred Tax Expense  (2,129)
Income Tax Expense  8,971

(B) Reconciliation of tax expense:
31 March 2024

 113,338
Add: Net Disallowances

 -
 689

 Total Taxable Income  114,027
Income Tax Expense  11,100

(C)  Amounts Recognised directly in Equity - Nil 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

29 Lease disclosure under Ind AS 116 – ‘Leases’
 Operating lease : Company as lessee

Particulars 31 March 2024
7,124

19,015
 -

 26,139

 Operating lease : Company as lessor

 
agreement

Particulars 31 March 2024
 -  -
 -
 -

Particulars 31 March 2024
 172,281

 63,139
 109,141

 2,915

 Operating lease : Company as sub-lessor

 

Particulars 31 March 2024
 85,536
 82,610

 2,925
 6,303

30 Capitalisation of expenditure
 



96

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

31 Earnings per equity share:
Year ended 

31 March 2024
 

 103,342
 22,581,200

 22,581,200

 4.58
 4.58

 5

32 Fair value measurement
 The carrying value/ Fair value of the Financial instruments by category

31 March 2024
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised 

cost

 485,415
 220,833

 3,372
 1,177,434

 330,887
 62,731

 330,887  -  1,949,785

 598,195
 38,520
 48,580

 -  -  685,296

(i)  Fair value hierarchy

 Financial instruments measured at Fair value

 Level 1: 

 Level 2: 

 Level 3: 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Level Carrying 

Value
Fair Value Carrying 

Value
Fair Value

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

 

33 Financial risk management
 

(A)  Credit risk
 

(a)  Trade receivable related credit risk
 

.

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision
Amount

Loss allowance on April 1, 2022

Loss allowance on March 31, 2023  1,413

Loss allowance on March 31, 2024 1,691

(b)  Others Financial Asset

(B)  Liquidity risk



98

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

 Less than 1 year  More than 1 year  Total
as at March 31, 2024

Total liabilities

 Less than 1 year  More than 1 year  Total
as at March 31, 2023

Total liabilities

 Less than 1 year  More than 1 year  Total
as at March 31, 2024

Total Assets

 Less than 1 year  More than 1 year  Total
as at March 31, 2023

Total Assets

(C)  Market risk
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

31 March 2024
Financial Assets (BHD)

 270,000
 702,429
 153,389

 Foreign Currency Sensitivity

Particulars Currency Change in rate
before tax (Increamental amount)

BHD +5%  56,291
BHD -5%  (56,291)
BHD +5%
BHD -5%

31 March 2024
 -

 598,195
Total Borrowing  598,195

34 Interest rate sensitivity

Particulars  Currency  Increase / decrease in
basis points before tax

 INR  +50  266
 INR  -50  (266)
 INR  +50
 INR  -50
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

35 Capital management

Particulars 31-Mar-24
598,195

1,884,157
Net Debt to equity ratio 31.75%

36 Related party disclosures

 

A)  Parties where control exists
(i)  Shareholders holding more than 20%

(ii)  Subsidiary companies

(iii)  Joint Venture

(iv)  Step Down Subsidiary Company

(v)  Key management personnel and relatives of such personnel
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

A  Parties where control exists 

(v) 
 – 

B Transactions with related parties for the year ended 31 March 2024 are as follows:-
Transactions Subsidiary companies Key Management 

Personnel and 
relatives of such 

personnel

Enterprises over which 
key management 

personnel have 
control/ substantial 

2024 2024 2024
Rendering of services - Sale of 
products

 3,077

 14,115

 6,120
Receiving of services

 3,849  -
Interest income

 20,322  -

 7,866  -
 55,708  -

 -  1,805
Interest expenses

 104  -
 165  -

Rent expenses
-  2,400  -

 -  5,116  -
 -  1,380

Managerial remuneration
 -  8,587

Janaki
 -  5,500

 -  6,280
Reimbursement of expenses 
received by the Company (net)

 1,070

 -  339
 1,854
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

Transactions Subsidiary companies Key Management 
Personnel and 

relatives of such 
personnel

Enterprises over which 
key management 

personnel have 
control/ substantial 

2024 2024 2024
Loan given during the year

 -  -
 32,900  -
 28,100  -

Loan repaid during the year
 32,000  -

 22,900  -
 -  -

Advances received during the 
year

 -  -  -
Loan receivable

 181,200  -

 155,293  -
 610,000  -

 -  20,000
Amount receivable

 2,049  -

 44,868  -
 -  3,592

Interest receivable
 1,513  -

 133,649
Other Payables

 -  645
 -  187
 -  1,350
 -  589

Advances payable
 1,019
 1,623
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

37 Disclosure as per Clause 32 of the Listing agreement
Name of the Company  Balance as at  Maximum outstanding 

during the year
 2024  2024

(a)  Particulars in respect of loans and advances in the 
nature of loans to subsidiary/ associate companies

     181,200  202,600
     -  -
     155,293  155,293
     610,000  610,000
     20,000  20,000
(b)   Particulars of Loans and advances to Companies in 

which director (s) is a Director or member:
   -
(c )   Particulars in respect of loans and deposits to 

subsidiary / associate companies where there is no 
repayment schedule

     181,200  202,600
     -  -
     155,293  155,293
     610,000  610,000
     20,000  20,000

38 Commitments

39 Contingent liabilities
 31 March 2024

a)  1,675
 35,655

Notes
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)

40 Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis)

41 Earnings in foreign exchange (on accrual basis)

42 

43 Disclosure pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

a)  Details of loan given:
Name of the the entity and relation with 
the Company, if applicable

Terms and conditions of the loan and purpose for which it 
will be utilised

Company

Company
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

 
Name of Party Financial year Opening 

balance  
(excluding 

accrued  
interest)

Loan given Loan repaid/
Adjustment

Closing 
balance

 (excluding 
accrued  
interest)

Company

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

44 Disclosure of Ratios
Particulars  As at

31-Mar-24
 As at

31-Mar-23
% of 

Variance
 Reason for 

variance for more 
than 25%

i)  Debt Equity ratio - [no. of times]  0.32  0.33  (5)
  
ii)   Debt service coverage ratio ('DSCR') - 

[no. of times]
 5.60  5.56  1

  

date)

iii)   Current ratio [no. of times]  5.15  4.98  4
  

iv)   Trade receivables turnover ratio 
(times)

 1.25  1.25  0

2

 
 1.43  1.13  27

vi)  Return on Equity Ratio [%]3  0.06  0.05  14
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

Particulars  As at
31-Mar-24

 As at
31-Mar-23

% of 
Variance

 Reason for 
variance for more 

than 25%
vii)  Return on Capital Employed Ratio [%]  0.07  0.07  7

viii) Trade payables turnover - [no. of 
times]

 7.73  9.08  (15)

45 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2024

988

46 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)

47 

48 Other information

49 Prior period comparatives

Uttam Abuwala Ghosh & Associates 
 

 
Mukta Arts Limited 

Sd/-
CA Subhash Jhunjhunwala 

Sd/-
Subhash Ghai 

Sd/- 
Rahul Puri 

Sd/- 
Parvez A. Farooqui

Date:
Place: 

Sd/-
Prabuddha Dasgupta 

Sd/- 
Hemal Pankhania 

Company Secretary
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Consolidated Financial Results

To
The Board of Directors  
Mukta Arts Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Annual Financial Statement
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

Emphasis of Matter

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Annual Financial Results
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

For Uttam Abuwala Ghosh & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 111184W

Sd/- 
CA Subhash Jhunjhunwala 
Partner 

 

 



(` in ‘000)
 Particulars  Note  

No. 
As at 

I. ASSETS 
 Non-current assets 
  
   
   
   7
   
   
   
    
    
   
   
 Total Non-current assets 
 Current assets 
  
  
   
   
   
   
   
   
  
 Total Current assets 
 Total Assets 
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
 Equity 
  
  
 Equity attributable to the owner of the Company 
 Non Controlling Interest 
 Total Equity 
 Liabilities 
 Non-current liabilities 
  
   
   
   
  
  
 Total Non-Current Liabilities 
 Current liabilities 
  
   
   
   
   
  
  
 Total Current liabilities 
 Total Equity and Liabilities 

Uttam Abuwala Ghosh & Associates 
 

 
Mukta Arts Limited 

Sd/-
CA Subhash Jhunjhunwala 

Sd/-
Subhash Ghai 

Sd/- 
Rahul Puri 

Sd/- 
Parvez A. Farooqui

Sd/-
Prabuddha Dasgupta 

Sd/- 
 



 Notes As at

(III) Total Income (I+II)
(IV) Expenses

 Total Expenses

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

(X) Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII)

 
  - 

 
  - 

 
  - 

(X) Earnings per share
 
 

Uttam Abuwala Ghosh & Associates 
 

 
Mukta Arts Limited 

Sd/-
CA Subhash Jhunjhunwala 

Sd/-
Subhash Ghai 

Sd/- 
Rahul Puri 

Sd/- 
Parvez A. Farooqui

Sd/-
Prabuddha Dasgupta 

Sd/- 
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Number Amount 

Reserves & Surplus Total 
other 
equity

Securities 
Premium

General  
Reserve

Capital  
Reserve

Foreign  
Currency  
Reserve

Retained  
Earnings

 41 

 - 
Total Comprehensive income for 
the year

 -  -  -  41 

 - 
 - 

Total Comprehensive income for 
the year

 -  -  - 

outstanding account
 - 

 - 

Uttam Abuwala Ghosh & Associates 
 

 
Mukta Arts Limited 

Sd/-
CA Subhash Jhunjhunwala 

Sd/-
Subhash Ghai 

Sd/- 
Rahul Puri 

Sd/- 
Parvez A. Farooqui

Sd/-
Prabuddha Dasgupta 

Sd/- 
 



Particluars For the year ended

Loss before tax

Cash generated from (used in) operations

Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities (A)

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note (b) below)



Uttam Abuwala Ghosh & Associates 
 

 
Mukta Arts Limited 

Sd/-
CA Subhash Jhunjhunwala 

Sd/-
Subhash Ghai 

Sd/- 
Rahul Puri 

Sd/- 
Parvez A. Farooqui

Sd/-
Prabuddha Dasgupta 

Sd/- 
 



Corporate information

Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)

Segment Reporting
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Foreign Currency Transactions

Revenue Recognition

 Film/content production and related income

 Income from distribution and exhibition 

 Theatrical exhibition and related income
 Sale of tickets

 Sale of food and beverages

 Advertisement/ sponsorship revenue

 Revenue from equipment hire/ facility rental

 Revenue from business support service

 Consultancy fees/ tuition fees income/ infrastructure fees/ facilitation charges 
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 Dividend & Interest income

Borrowing Costs

 



Leases
 Assets taken on operating lease

 Assets given on operating lease

Taxation

 Current tax

 Minimum Alternative Tax Credit entitlement

 Deferred tax

 Transition to Ind AS

Asset class Useful life 



Investment properties

Intangible assets
 Film rights comprising negative rights and distribution rights

Impairment of Non Financial Asset

Inventory

Cash and cash equivalents



Financial Instruments 

 Financial Asset

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Subsequent measurement

 Financial Assets measured at amortised cost

 Equity investments



 Derecognition of Financial Assets

 The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried 

receivables.
 Trade receivables

Ageing Expected Credit loss(%)

 Financial Liabilities
(i) Initial recognition and measurement

(ii) Subsequent measurement

 

 Derecognition of Financial Liabilities



Measurement of fair values

Provisions

Contingent Liabilities

Earnings per share (‘EPS’)



Critical estimates and judgements



(` in ‘000)

Tangible assets 

Land 
rights premises

Institute 
building

Leasehold 
premises

Plant and 
machinery

Motor 
vehicles 

Furniture 

equipment

Libarary 
books

Computers Total 

Gross block 

As at 1 April 2022

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2024

Accumulated Depreciation/
Amortisation

As at 1 April 2022  - 

As at 31 March 2023  - 

As at 31 March 2024  - 

Net block

As at 1 April 2022

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2024



(` in ‘000)

Intangible assets 
Distribution 

rights
Negative 

rights
Exhibition 

rights
Intellectual 

property 
rights 

(Course 
curriculum)

Computer 
software

Total 

Gross block 
As at 1 April 2022

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2024

Accumulated Depreciation/
Amortisation
As at 1 April 2022

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2024

Net block
As at 31 March 2023
As at 31 March 2024  (0)  0  - 

Gross block 
As at 1 April 2022

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2024

Accumulated Depreciation/Amortisation
As at 1 April 2022

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2024

Net block
As at 31 March 2023
As at 31 March 2024



(` in ‘000)

Particular Building Land Total
As at 1 April 2022

 - 
 - 
 - 

As at 31 March 2023

As at 1 April 2023
 - 
 - 
 - 

As at 31 March 2024

Accumulated Depreciation/Amortisation

As at 1 April 2022

 - 
 - 

As at 31 March 2023  - 

As at 1 April 2023

 - 
 - 

As at 31 March 2024  - 

Carrying amounts (Net)



(` in ‘000)
(i) Information regarding Income and expenditure of Investment properties 

As at

(ii) Fair Value 
Particulars Valuation Techniques

(See note below) (See note below)
As at 

 Estimation of fair value

8 Non Current Financial Asset
8(a) Investments 

As at

A Non current investments
Unquoted equity shares

i) Investment in equity shares of joint venture accounted at 
FVTPL
Mukta VN Films Limited

Total (i)

ii) Investment in equity instruments-others at FVTPL (un-quoted)
 1 

 1 

Total (ii)
Total (i+ii)



(` in ‘000)

As at

 - 

 - 

9 Deferred tax assets (net)

As at

Deferred tax liability on
 - 

Total  - 
Deferred tax asset on

Total
Deferred tax assets (net)

Movement in deferred tax assets

debts 
and intangible 

assets 

As at

Capital advances

Total



(` in ‘000)
11 Inventories

As at

Total

As at

Total

As at

Cash on hand

Total cash and cash equivalents in balace sheet

As at

months
Total Bank balances other than above

As at

Total

As at

Total



(` in ‘000)

As at

Total

14 Equity share capital 

Number Amount
Authorised share capital

Total

 Terms and rights attached to equity shares
 

 Reconciliation of paid- up share capital (Equity Shares) 

Number Amount

 -  - 
 -  - 

Balance at the end of the year

Number % holding
in the class  in the class 



(` in ‘000)

As at

Securities premium

 - 

General reserve

 - 

Capital reserve

 - 

Foreign Currency Reserve

Retained earnings

Total

As at

Secured

Total

 



(` in ‘000)

Lendor Repayment schedule and other terms

As at

Total

As at

Total

As at

Total

As at

Total



(` in ‘000)
19 Currrent Financial Liabilities
19(a) Short-term borrowings 

As at

Secured

Unsecured

Total

19(b) Lease liabilities
As at

Total

19(c) Trade payable
As at

Total

As at

Total

As at

 9 

Total



(` in ‘000)

As at

 - 

Total

Year ended

(b) 
 40 

 

(c) 

Total

Year ended

Total other income



(` in ‘000)

Year ended

Closing stock

Total changes in inventories of food and beverages

Year ended

Total Distributor and producer's share

Year ended

Year ended

 

Gratuity

8% to 9.00%



(` in ‘000)

Gratuity

 - 

 -184 

 - 

(B) Changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets

Gratuity

 - 
Fair value of plan assets at the end

 

(C) Amount recognised in the Balance sheet

Gratuity

(D) Constitution of Plan Assets

Gratuity

100%
Total of the Plan Assets 100%



(` in ‘000)
(E) Sensitivity analysis

 

Gratuity

Decrease Increase

Gratuity

Decrease Increase

 

Gratuity

(G) Risk exposure

 

 Asset volatility - 
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(` in ‘000)
 Changes in bond yields - 

Year ended

Total Finance Cost

Year ended

Total Finance Cost

Year ended

Total
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(` in ‘000)

Year ended

 804 

(A) Income Tax Expense

 

positions

Income Tax Expense
Current tax

Total Current Tax Expense

Deferred Tax

 - 

Total Deferred Tax Expense

Income Tax Expense

Year ended

 The carrying value/ Fair value of the Financial instruments by category

FVTPL Amortised 
cost cost

Financial assets

 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 

 -  - 

 - 



(` in ‘000)

FVTPL Amortised 
cost cost

Financial liabilities
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 
 -  - 

(i) Fair value hierarchy

 Financial instruments measured at Fair value

(A) Credit risk

(i) Credit risk management

(a) Trade receivable related credit risk

 Reconciliation of loss allowance provision 

Amount

 



(` in ‘000)
(B) Liquidity risk 

 

(i) Financing arrangements

 

 

 Less than 1 year  More than 1 year  Total 

Total liabilities
 Less than 1 year  More than 1 year  Total 

Total liabilities
 Less than 1 year  More than 1 year  Total 

Total Assets
 Less than 1 year  More than 1 year  Total 

Total Assets
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(` in ‘000)
(C) Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

(ii) Interest rate risk exposure

Total Borrowing

Weighted 
Average 

Interest Rate

Balance  % of Total 
Loans 

Weighted 

 Interest rate sensitivity

 

Particulars  Currency  Increase /
decrease in
basis points 

before tax 
(Increamental amount) 

 INR 
 INR 
 INR 
 INR 

 



(` in ‘000)

Particulars

Net Debt to equity ratio

Particulars
Segment revenue 

 - 

Segment results 

segment 

Depreciation and amortization



(` in ‘000)

Particulars

Capital employed
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024 (CONTD.)
(` in ‘000)

37	 Related party disclosures
	 Details of related parties including summary of transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended 31 

March 2023 are summarized below:
A)	 Parties where control exists
(i)	 Shareholders holding more than 50%

•	 Subhash Ghai 
(ii)	 Key management personnel and relatives of such personnel

•	 Subhash Ghai - Chairman, Executive Director (and shareholder)
•	 Parvez Farooqui - Non-Executive Director (and shareholder)
•	 Rahul Puri - Managing Director
•	 Mukta Ghai - Wife of Subhash Ghai (and shareholder)
•	 Ashok Ghai - Brother of Subhash Ghai
•	 Siraj Farooqui - Brother of Parvez Farooqui
•	 Sameer Farooqui - Brother of Parvez Farooqui
•	 Sajid Farooqui - Brother of Parvez Farooqui
•	 Meghna Ghai Puri - Daughter of Subhash Ghai, wife of Rahul Puri (and shareholder)

(iii)	 Enterprise over which key management personnel have control/ substantial interest/ significant influence
•	 Mukta Arts – Proprietary concern of Subhash Ghai
•	 Mukta Tele Arts Private Limited – Enterprise in which Subhash Ghai exercises significant influence

B	 Transactions with related parties for the year ended 31 March 2024 are as follows:-

Transactions Key Management Personnel 
and relatives of such 

personnel

Enterprises over which key 
management personnel have 
control/ substantial interest/ 

significant influence
 2024  2023  2024  2023 

Receiving of services
Ashok Ghai - Professional fees paid  3,849  3,849  -  - 
Rent expenses
Subhash Ghai  2,400  2,400  -  - 
Lease rentals of subsidiary company
Subhash Ghai  3,000  3,000  -  - 
Salaries and other benefit
Siraj Farooqui  5,116  4,740  -  - 
Sameer Farooqui  1,380  1,188  -  - 
Ishaan Farooqui  461  360 - -
Managerial remuneration
Subhash Ghai  8,587  8,587  -  - 
Subhash Ghai - Professional Fees - Janaki  5,500  - 
Rahul Puri  6,280  5,818  -  - 
Remuneration/Faculty fees to director of 
subsidiary company
Subhash Ghai  3,000  3,000 
Rahul Puri  3,450  3,000 
Meghna Ghai Puri  7,858  7,134 
Parvez A. Farooqui  6,073  5,729 
Corporate Guarantee Commission 
Expenses
Subhash Ghai  711  1,479 
Loan taken by subsidiary company during 
the year
Subhash Ghai  -  4,000 
Loan repaid by subsidiary company 
during the year
Subhash Ghai  500  18,500 
Interest on Loan during the year
Subhash Ghai  2,705  3,348 
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 * Notes 

40 Disclosure of Ratios

Particulars  As at   Reason for 
variance for 

i) Debt Equity ratio - [no. of times]
 

ii) Debt service coverage ratio 
('DSCR') - [no. of times]

 

the balance sheet date)
iii) Current ratio [no. of times]
 

iv) Trade receivables turnover ratio 
(times)
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(` in ‘000)

Particulars  As at   Reason for 
variance for 

vi) Return on Equity Ratio [%]
 

vii) Net Capital Turnover Ratio [no. of 
times]4

 

viii) Return on Capital Employed Ratio 
[%]

 

ix) Trade payables turnover - [no. of 
times]

 

 4.40 

 



(` in ‘000)

 

 - 

 488 

 - 



(` in ‘000)

Name of the the entity and relation Terms and conditions of the loan and purpose for which it will be 
utilised

 

Name of Party Financial year
balance(excluding 
accrued interest)

Loan 
given

Loan repaid/
Adjustment

Closing 
balance(excluding 
accrued interest)

 

Uttam Abuwala Ghosh & Associates 
 

 
Mukta Arts Limited 

Sd/-
CA Subhash Jhunjhunwala 

Sd/-
Subhash Ghai 

Sd/- 
Rahul Puri 

Sd/- 
Parvez A. Farooqui

Sd/-
Prabuddha Dasgupta 

Sd/- 
 



Notes



Convocation event of Class 2023 at WWIL

Celebrate Cinema event at WWILConvocation event of Class 2023 at WWIL
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